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Annual Report of the Academy Board and Senior Management Team

The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust (thereafter "the Trust") presents its Annual Report together with Financial

Statements and Auditors' Report for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August2024.ln so doing, the information

serves as a Trustees' Report (Charity Law) and also as a Directors' Report and Strategic Report (Company Law).

The Trust operates three Primary Schools, two Secondary Colleges and two Studio Colleges in Hayes, Middlesex.

Its Schools and Colleges have a combined pupil/student capacity of 3,850 (inclusive of primary nurseries), and had a

roll of 2,805 in the School Census on October 2023.

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee (thereafter "the Company"), and an

exempt charity with charitable status within the meaning of Section 12 of the Academies Act 2010. ln common

with most other charitable companies, it too has Members. Accordingly, on 27 June 201 1, First Members signed

the necessary documentation to both establish and register the Company at Companies House.

As signatories to the Memorandum of Association (thereafter "the Memorandum"), First Members also agreed the

Ar¡cles of Association (thereafter the "Articles") which include the charitable objects of the Trust. Together the

Memorandum and Articles remain the primary documents describing how the Trust is governed. One of the key

responsibilities of Members is the ongoing appointment and replacement of Trustees to the Board; also

determining the mechanism by which Governors are appointed to each Local Advisory Body (thereafter "the

LAB") at individual schools or colleges. However, for the purposes of company law, Trustees are sometimes

referred to as Directors by the Department for Education (thereafter "the DfE") and the Education and Skills

Funding Agency (thereafter "the ESFA"). Even so, for the sake of clarity, the term Director within the vocabulary

of the Trust, normally refers to an employee who is a member of the Senior Leadership Team (thereafter "the

SLT") at an individual college.

While Members hold the Board to account in terms of the effective governance, it is the Trustees rather than the

Members who are responsible for the leadership, management, administration and general control of the Trust.

The Trustees are the key decision-makers, albeit informed by collective feedback from the Governors who serve

on each ofthe LABs.

Through the current Articles, Members can also serve as Trustees and/or Governors. However, the roles of

Members, Trustees and Governors are quite distinct, and therefore every effort is made to separate the various

tiers of governance so as to avoid potential conflict of interest; something that is nevertheless difficult to achieve

within a small Multi-Academy Trust (thereafter "the MAT'). Please see Reference and Administrative Details for

details of Members, Trustees and Governors who have served throughout the financial year, 1 September 2023

to 31 August2024 and to the date the accounts are approved, with the exception of those noted.

Liabilities and Indemnities

Each Member of the Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the event of it being wound up

while serving as a Member, or within one year after ceasing to be a Member. This contribution will not exceed

Ê10, irrespective of the debts and liabilities contracted prior to cessation of membership.

The Trust provides cover for Members, Trustees and Governors through professional indemnity insurance. This

concerns liabilities which arise from acts of neglect, errors and/or omissions, committed in good faith. ln

addition, the Board has taken out fidelity guarantee insurance to cover losses caused by the dishonesty of any of

the above individuals. Both of these policies have maximum insured limits, reviewed on an annual basis, as

required by the Companies Act 2006 Section 236.
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Activities

The principal object and activity of the Trust is to advance, for the public benefit, education in the United Kingdom by
establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools and colleges (thereafter "the Academies")
offering a broad and balanced curriculum. Working in collaboration with the London Borough of Hillingdon, the Trust
first allocates places to those children with Special Educational Needs and who have named a specific Academy.
All other applicants are offered places according to the criteria set out in each respective Admissions policy. When
applicants exceed the total number of places available for the relevant age group at any Academy, a waiting list is
established.

Organisation and Structure

The Gompany

\Mthin the current Memorandum and Articles, Ti^ustees ai'e appointed by unanimous resolution of the existing
Members, who also reserve the automatic right of representation at Board level. Each LAB serves as a standing
sub-committee of the Board, operating under a Schedule of Delegation which is annually reviewed and approved by
Trustees. Local Governors are appointed to the LAB in accordance with these Articles and together with the SLT,
are responsible for the affairs and day-to-day safe operation of the individual Academy.

The Board

The Board is the regulatory authority of the Trust and as such is responsible for setting the strategic direction,
operational priorities and policy at a corporate level across the group of Academies within the Trust. The Trustees
approve a Scheme of Delegation which covers key functions and levels of responsibility for Trustees and local
Governors in terms of governance and levels of responsibility for senior staff in terms of leadership and
management. ln short, the remit of the Board is to provide coherent leadership and management across all of the
Academies sponsored by the Trust. lt is therefore responsible for allocating resources by approving an annual
budget plan, monitoring the use of these resources and making major decisions about the use of capital and
revenue by setting the general strategy and direction of travel for the Trust.

The composition of the Board is as follows:

3 x Trustees from local corporate business;
3 x Trustees (including parents where possible representing each educational phase);

The Local Advisory Bodies

LABs are responsible for advising and assisting in the formulation of general policies concerned with standards and
the quality of teaching. They review and report on the curriculum offered at the respective school with reference to
national and local requirements. They monitor and review the progress of pupils/students in terms of academic
achievements, attendance, punctuality and behaviour; all benchmarked against local and national performance. The
LAB is required to prepare written documents which report on the above, and in so doing consider the next steps
and recommendations made by the Principal/Headteacher and respective SLT. Each LAB is required to actively
promote the work of its Academy within its local community; responding to external feedback in an effort to
continuously improve.

Each LAB is responsible for the affairs of individual Academies, having the following representation:

Rosedale Primary School: 2 x Governors (drawn from the Executive Group); the Headteacher of the
School; 2 x co-opted Governors (drawn from the local community); 2 x additional Governors (drawn
from the parent body)
Hewens Primary School: 2 x Governors (drawn from the Executive Group); the Headteacher of the
School; 2 x co-opted Governors (drawn from the local community); 2 x additional Governors (drawn
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from the parent body)
Brookside Primary School: 2 x Governors (drawn from the Executive Group); the Headteacher of the

School; 2 x co-opted Governors (drawn from the local community); 2 x additional Governors (drawn

from the parent body)
Rosedale College: 2 x Governors (drawn from the Executive Group); the Principal of the Academy;2 x

co-opted Governors (drawn from the local community); 2 x additional Governors (drawn from the parent

body)
Hewens Gollege: 2 x Governors (drawn from the Executive Group); the Principal of the Academy;2 x

co-opted Governors (drawn from the local community); 2 x additional Governors (drawn from the parent

body)

Parkside Studio College: 2 x Governors (drawn from the Executive Group); the Principal of the

Academy; 2 x co-opted Governors (drawn from the local business community); 2 x additional Governors

(drawn from the parent bodY)

De Salis Studio Gollege: 2 x Governors (drawn from the Executive Group); the Principal of the

Academy; 2 x co-opted Governors (drawn from the local business community); 2 x additional Governors

(drawn from the parent body)

During the period under review there were three meetings of the Board; three meetings of each LAB; four meetings

of the Finance and Resources Committee and one annual meeting of Members. The training and induction provided

for new Trustees and Governors was in part, dependent on individual past experience and the specific skills which

they each have brought to the work of the Board. Routinely, by way of induction, the Chair has provided a

conducted tour of each of the schools and colleges sponsored by the Trust, focusing on specific issues which relate

to the individual Academy visited. Each Governor/Trustee is provided with a programme intended to raise

awareness, including issues such as safeguarding, safer recruitment of staff, health and safety, and the educational

provision on offer at each Academy. Trustees are deployed to one of three work streams, and then given specific

training to assist them in this role. Wthin this period, there has been a focus on recruiting to the resources work

stream where training on financial and legal matters has been prioritised, together with details about charitable

status.

Board Meetings are held during the working day when the entire day is given over to Trustees to receive reports and

thereby hold each of the individual Academies to account. All Governors and Trustees are provided with copies of

policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents which they need in order to undertake

their respective roles. At Academy level, LABs tend to meet late in the afternoon session, receiving ongoing training

prior to termly meetings. This too has proved to be extremely valuable.

Trustees continue to make good use of the information held on Trust Governor, a bespoke software package

developed for MATs and previously recommended by the DfE. The practice has been to post early drafts of

documentation to elicit feedback prior to sign off at Board meetings.

The Executive Group

The Chief Executive is authorised to incur expenditure within the approved budget without further authorisation from

the Board, particularly when making staff appointments. Trustees are actively involved in appointing to the

management structure at each Academy. ln the primary phase, this includes the appointment of Headteachers and

Assistant Headteachers, whilst at secondary phase, this includes Principals, Associate Principals, Vice Principals

and Assistant principals. ln the secondary phase, each Assistant Principal is designated as a Director of Teaching

and Learning (thereafter "the DTL"). At each Academy, the SLT is responsible for the day-to-day operation of the

Academy, in particular organising the teaching staff, facilities and students.

Disabled Employees Policy

The Trust's policy is to give full and fair consideration to applications for employment made by disabled persons

having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities. Employees who become disabled are retained in existing

posts where possible. Procedures relating to training, career development and promotion are adapted to ensure that
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the employment policies outlined below are fully available equally for disabled and non-disabled employees.

Employment Policy

The Trust depends on the skills and commitment of its employees to perform well. Selection and development
procedures are designed to ensure equal opportunlties exist for all applicants and employees regardless of gender,
marital status, race, age or disability, decisions being based on an individual's aptitude and ability. Employees are
kept well informed and encouraged to discuss matters of concern.

Arrangements for setting pay

The Trust continues to exercise its freedoms and flexibilities through its Pay Policies, varying the provisions made
both locally and nationally through collective bargaining. During the course of the period in question, there has been
harmonisation of pay arrangements for all those who hold posts beyond the teaching workforce.

Across the teaching workforce, the Pay Policy provides a framework which is used when making decisions about
teachers' pay on appointment and annually with regard to pay progression. The Pay Committee is always mindful of
adjustments made nationally through the School Teachers' Pay and Conditions Document (thereafter "the STpCD")
as it applies to maintained schools in England. lt uses these recommendations as a benchmark when reviewing
pay policies, salary ranges and remuneration annually. As such, employees, through the annual pay review, are
encouraged to read its recommendations in conjunction with other policies which regulate the employment of
teachers within the Trust, in particular in respect of Performance Management,

Equally, the Pay Policy recognises that the Education Act 2002 (thereafter "the Act") gives the Secretary of State
power to issue guidance on pay and condition matters within the state funded independent sector. Accordingly,
the Trust pays due regard to this advice when annually reviewing the basis on which each teacher is paid, also
bearing in mind the outcome of performance management. The Annual Review is to ensure that pay policy
continues to reflect the latest legal position. ln so doing, the Trust remains confident that all procedures in
determining pay are consistent with the principles of public life, namely objectivity, openness and accountability.

Specifically, all pay related decisions are taken in compliancewith:

. The Equality Act 2010;. The Employment Rights Act 1996;. The Employment Relations Act 1999;. The Employment Act2002;
' The Part-time Workers (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations2000;. The Employment Act2002 (Dispute Resolution) Regulations;and
' The Fixed Term Employees (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2002

ln adopting the Policy the aim of the Trust isto:

. Maximise the quality of teaching and learning;

' Support each school and college in the implementation of its respective Development Plan and any other
relevant improvement, and action plans, in addressing the issues which emerge from routine self-
evaluation;. Support the recruitment and retention of a high quality teacher workforce;

' Recognise and reward teachers appropriately for the contribution they each make at school or college
level;

Teachers appointed as leaders and managers are paid on the Trust's Leadership and Management scale. Again,
these payments are carefully benchmarked against scales and remuneration published in the STPCD. This is to
ensure the Trust is able to retain a competitive edge in recruiting and retaining high quality middle and senior leaders.

The number of learners on roll at each Academy is the determining factor for Principals/Headteachers, Vice
Principals, Assistant Principals/Assistant Headteachers and Associate Directors of Teaching and Learning (secondary
only), being set by applying the general principles contained within The School Governance (Collaboration)
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(England) Regulations 2003, as a starting point. This requires a calculation to be made by combining the unit

score of each Academy for which overall responsibility is held. When determining pay for Executive

principals/Executive Headteachers, the Pay Committee takes into account all of the permanent responsibilities of

the role whilst adjusting salary from time to time to take account of any specific challenges or other

considerations.

Trade Union Facility Time

During the period there was one employee who was a relevant union official. Percentage of time: 0%

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Several of the Academies within the Trust have a long history of working in collaboration and cooperation with others.

At secondary level, for example, there has for many years been engagement with the local business community.

Equally, there has been on-going commitment to provide opportunities for the local community to have access to

specialist facilities at different campus sites, particularly in terms of sport, dance and performance. ln some instances,

these previously designed "extended services" have arisen as part of the Trust's support for Local Authority initiatives.

The Trust continues to develop additional services, including training and extra provision for children and families.

This is achieved through a number of companies, including:

Rosedate College Community Enterprise Limited (thereafter "the RCCEL") was established in 2008. A

Member of the Trust is registered as a non-salaried Director of RCCEL, which regulates the out-of-hours

community use of the Trust's specialist facilities and assets;

Little Marvels Nursery Services Limited (thereafter "the LMNSL"), which was established in December 2015,

offers Early Years provision on each campus sponsored by the Trust. LMNSL is part funded by the Local

Authority and offers nursery provision for under 2's upwards. lt continues to be an important element of the

LA's overall Early Years strategy. A Member of the Trust is the registered non-salaried Director, and is also

registered with Ofsted as a specialist in the Early Years Foundation Stage (thereafter "the EYFS"). This

provision is subject to regular Ofsted inspection;

Rowensbrook Training and Development Limited (thereafter "the RTDL") was established in March 2017 in

order to develop further vocational and occupational training opportunities through the Council for Awards in

Care Health and Education (thereafter "the CACHE"). The initial emphasis was on the children's workforce

offering the Early Years Educator (Level 3). A Member of the Trust is registered as a non-salaried Director of

RTDL, with sights set on establishing apprenticeship training as and when feasible;

There are no conflicts regarding pecuniary interests within the make-up of the Board, as Trustees are carefully

appointed to avoid such conflict. However, one Trustee has long since provided consultancy services to the

Academies and its predecessor schools. Accordingly, the Board has established a transparent Service Level

Agreement (thereafter "the SLA") so that knowledge and experience of the in-house catering operation is not lost. The

S¡q ensures that all profits made through this in-house operation is returned directly to the Trust for future investment

in the catering service. The Board is satisfied that his commitment and expertise continues to offer good value in that

he is responsible for keeping the catering operation up-to-date, particularly in terms of legislation and health and

safety audits. ln his tenure, he has achieved '5' Star ratings from Environment Health when commissioning new

catering facilities across all campuses.

Engagement with employees

Within this financial year, the headcount of employees showed an average staff breakdown figure of 303' The

following provision to introduce, maintain or develop arrangements for employee engagement are still in place:

ln order to provide employees with information on matters of concern to them a trust wide intranet

(Sharepoint) continues to be in place, where all key documents are available to all staff to access. New staff

are signposted to Sharepoint on their induction, and existing staff given the necessary training and

information on how to access the intranet. The information includes, staffing structures; policies; procedures;
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r¡sk assessments.

There has been consultation of employees on a regular basis by line managers and alliance/phase meetings
where views of employees can be considered.
The encouragement of the involvement of employees in the Trust's performance is evidenced though the
Performance Management Cycle along with target review by all key staff involved. During various
inspections, i.e. the Leading Parent Partnership Award (thereafter the "LPPA"), staff are always encouraged
to be actively involved and participate.

To achieve a common awareness of all employees of the factors affecting the performance of the Trust, there
are regular highlights during every staff training day as well as regular in-house discussions around
performance of each subject area.

Engagement with supplierc, customerc and other in a business relationship with the Trust

To summarise how the Board engages with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust,
this involves: reguiar meetings to explain the needs of the Trust, providing regular detailed reports of the pr.ogress and
development to key stakeholders; evidence of involving key stakeholders in the tender process for key supplier
decision making; good relationships with the local business community; support by the Hyatt Group and lnternational
Hotels Group (thereafter "lHG") who have continued to donate a large amount of business related journals and text
books specifically relevant for studio college courses, and using their expertise in helping develop our students within
all aspects of career development. As well as maintaining our links with Grad2Teach. Morgan Sindall, Boots,
Superdrug, Xerox, Marriott Hotel, The Diversity Org, Brunel Gym, Olympian Gym, Litfle Companions Nursery, Army
Careers, Coca Cola and Euro-Pacific Partners for Business in support of stakeholders, additional links have also been
developed throughout the year with The Football Association; Brentford FC; epR FC; Chiltern Learning Trust; Jack
Petchey Awards; Sparks Charity (careers talks and STEM workshops); SEGRO (careers mentoring programme); and
Tesco in conjunction with their "Stronger Starts" programme. Engagement continues with Brunel University, Windsor
Forest College Group, Teach First and strengthened links with Uxbridge College through Apprenticeships, lnternships
and Work Experience.

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Aims

The overall aims of the Trust through its Academies and associated enterprises is to offer high quality provision starting
with the early years through to university and beyond. The Trust has a fine track record of engaging with other training
providers by offering opportunities to school leavers to embark on apprenticeships, The underlying principle of Trust
provision is to offer choice and diversity allowing children and young people to develop in accordance with individual
aptitudes, abilities and interests. W¡th this in mind, the Trust has established a variety of small settings which in
particular allows secondary age students to follow a specialised curriculum having successfully completed the Key
Stage 3 (thereafter'KS3) curriculum.

As such, each secondary provider places particular emphasis on specific areas of the curriculum at Key Stage 4
(thereafter 'KS4). Rosedale College, for example, previously designated as a specialist Technology College,
continues to be recognised locally for the priority given to Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics
(thereafter "STEM). By contrast, Hewens College, previously designated as a specialist Humanities College, has
considerable expertise in History, Geography, Religious Education, and Citizenship. As an alternative, Parkside Studio
College offers specialist pathways in Media, Hair and Beauty, Catering and Hospitality, Health and Social Care and
Sport; whilst De Salis Studio College is a business school offering courses in Accountancy, Computer Science, Law,
Psychology, Sociology and Languages for business.

Through its Articles, the Board has adopted a scheme of governance which facilitates this provision, having been
approved by the Secretary of State for Education and subsequently undenruritten by ESFA. The scheme amongst
other things, specifies the basis for admitting pupils and students to each of the Trust's Academies.

a
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The Trust has a coherent vision and ethos, shared across its Academies, which can be summarised as below:



. Raise the standard of educational achievement of all learners;

. Ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition, safeguarding

and care;
. lmprove the effectiveness of each Academy by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure under

continual review;
. Provide value for money for the funds expended;
. Comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements;

. Maintain close links with industry and commerce;

. Conduct business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and openness.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

The strategic approach of the Trust is captured in its strap line which talks of 'success through Collaboration'. ln so

doing, it recognises that a great deal of social capital can be accumulated by drawing on the expertise and capacity

of other established education providers, stakeholders and those in the wider community. ln this, the Trust

emphasises the importance of local business links, which historically have offered students of all abilities the

opportunities to acquire the 'work-ready' attitudes, skills and abilities which will give them an edge in the job market.

The long term objective of the Trust is to develop young people who have the skills and abilities to work flexibly with

agility in organisations, thus improving the economic prospects of the local community. These additional activities

place 'students at the heart' of the strategy and are characterised by:

. lmprovement in the achievement and the aspiration of children and young people through the expansion of

the primary phase using vehicles such as academy conversion and free schools;
. Vyide ranging and innovative learning opportunities for young people and the wider community through the

development for studio school provision and other work place programmes;

. Developing strong and meaningful links with business in line with the Academy specialisms;

. A programme of extended school and life long learning activities for students and the community;

. A supportive and developmental ethos based values and standards to guide and develop the 'whole person'

and address the every child matters agenda;
. Development opportunities for all staff.

Public Benefit

The principal object and activity of the Trust is to advance, for the public benefit, education in the United Kingdom by

establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing the Academies, offering a broad and balanced

curriculum. The Trustees confirm they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission's general

guidance on public benefit, including the guidance 'public benefit: running a charity (PB2)'when reviewing the Trust's

aims and objectives.
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Strategic Report

Achievements and Performance including key performance indicators

Rosedale Primary School

Rosedale Primary School continues to be well above national average in all areas in terms of performance
measures. The School has consistently achieved these high standards since its first published performance
outcomes in 2018 and is Ofsted rated'Good'with continued secure evidence to aim for Outstanding in its next
graded inspection. This was re-affirmed in January 2023 during an inspection monitoring visit.

Rosedale Primary maintains high aspirations for all their pupils from the moment they join the school. The School
puts learning at the centre of the child's school journey incorporating children's inteiests and celebrations. The
experiences that pupils are exposed to help enhance their personal development and this enables them to
become articuiate, moiivated independent leai'ners who are confident and happy to learn.

Once again pupils in the Early Years consistently outperformed their peers locally and nationally for achieving a
Good Level of Development (GLD). Data shows 70o/o of children achieving a GLti, which is well above the Loial
Authority (LA) average of 66.10/o. This translates to secure progress at Key Stage One (KS1) with 86% of pupils
passing phonics screening in2024, again above the LA average of 82.2o/o.

Rosedale Primary has retained the Leading Parent Partnership Award (LPPA), achieving GOLD standard in 2023.
Parents, guardians and carers praise how the School supports them and their children. the School also achieved
the Gold Award for STARS, a Transport for London Community project.

Additionally, the School emphasises the importance of extra-curricular activities, providing opportunities for pupils
to explore their interests and develop their talents beyond the classroom. Rosedale primary School is an
exceptional institution that provides outstanding education and pastoral care to its pupils, equipping them with the
skills and confidence needed to thrive in their future endeavours.

Key Stage 2

unava¡lable for 2024 until end of 2024
**No pr¡mary test or essessment data has been publ¡shed for 2020,2021 ot 2022

n/a refers lo no progress data available due to no KS1 baseline data in 2022

Hewens Primary School

Hewens Primary School continues to set an exceptional standard in education, with 85.8% of pupils in the Early
Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) achieving a Good Level of Development (GLD), significantly surpassing botñ
local and national averages. ln Year 1, an impressive 87% of pupils excelled in the Phonics Screening Cfrect<,
demonstrating strong foundations in Literacy. The outstanding outcomes extend to Year 6, where 89.5%bf pupils
met or exceeded the expected standard in Mathematics, Reading, and Spelling, Grammar, and Punctuation, and
75.4% achieved this benchmark in Writing.

Hewens Primary remains a cornerstone of the community, committed to fostering academic excellence while
nurturing well-rounded, socially responsible citizens. Central to our mission is the active engagement of parents,
carers, and guardians. A notaþle highlight was the Coffee Morning, hosted in collaboration with The Stronger
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lndicators 2022*"
2023

Published
2024*

Provisional

Local
Authority
Average

2023

National
Average
England

2023
Progress Score Reading (SS) - 0.1 1.5 nla 0.3 0
Progress Score Writing (SS) 4.6 5.0 nla 0.71 0

Progress Score Mathematics (SS) 2.3 4.5 nla 1.37 0
Average Scale Score Reading 104.6 r 06.9 105.7 105.3 105

Average Scale Score Mathematics 105.8 108.9 106.6 105.6 104
Average Scaled Score GPS 107.5 1 10.3 108.5 107 105

Reading, Writing and Mathematics (%Exp) 76.3o/o 80o/o 77o/o 63% 60%



Families Hub, which was also supported by a Financial Adviser, a Nutrition Club, and our local SEND and
pastoral teams. This event received enthusiastic participation, with families sharing overwhelmingly positive

feedback on the support and resources provided. Throughout the year, the School also organised a series of

parent workshops, equipping families with essential skills to support their children's.learning and personal

bevelopment. Hewens'pi¡maiy retains the LPPA Award and remains testament to the positive relationship with all

stakeholders. The Annual Pinning Ceremony is a notable occasion at the School where pupils are celebrated for

their contribution to the School and community. Pupil Leaders play a pivotal role in shaping the school

environment and this is integral to preparing all learners when taking their place in society.

Dedicated to the continuous growth, development, and retention of high-calibre staff, Hewens Primary invests

heavily in professional develoþment. This includes supporting team members in pursuing National Professional

eualifications to ensure robust succession planning and the integration of best practices. Additionally, this

programme enabled five teachers to achieve Qualified Teacher Status (QTS) in the year, further enhancing the

pedagogical expertise of the School's reflective practitioners'

Hewens primary School stands as a beacon of excellence, empowering both pupils and staff to achieve their

fullest potential and contributing meaningfully to the wider educational and local communities.

Key Stage 2

lndicators 2022**
2023

Published
2024'

Provisional

Local
Authority
Average

2023

National
Average
England

2023

Progress Score Reading (SS) 0.4 0.8 nla 0.3 0

Progress Score Writing (SS) 3.6 -5.9 nla 0.71 0

Progress Score Mathematics (SS) 1.1 2.8 nla 1.37 0

Average Scale Score Reading 103.8 105.3 106.7 105.3 '105

Average Scale Score Mathematics 104.4 106.5 106.6 105.6 104

Average Scale Score GPS 107.5 107.2 108.4 107 105

Reading, Writing and Mathematics (%Exp) 64¿% 25% 72% 63%

**No primary test or assessment data has been publ¡shed for 2020,2021 ot 2Q22

n/a refers to no progress data available due to no KS'l baseline d ala in 2022

Brookside Primary School

Brookside Primary School was judged in 2024 to be a 'Good' school with a strong learning culture, personal

development programmes, high expectations and a positive ethos to enable children to thrive. Pupils respond well

and apply themselves to their learning. The efficiency of the reading programme was not only highlighted by

Ofsted, but also evident in the upward trajectory of the pupils' progress over time. With the development of a fully

refurbished outdoor play area in line with the EYFS curriculum and by way of supporting learning, great strides

have been made to support pupil development which is evident in improvements in progress.

Brookside Primary has made significant progress as it relates to academic and personal development of the

pupils across each key stage. ln respect of performance, KS2 pupils achieved 620/o in Reading, Writing and

Mathematics, and additionally there was improvement in Reading and Mathematics with attainment al84.4o/o and

Spelling Punctuation and Grammar al82.2o/o. The performance at the Higher Standard percentage of pupils was:-

Reading 28.9o/o', Writing 17.8o/o; Mathematics 24.4o/o, Spelling Punctuation and Grammar 35.60/o. Additionally, in

KS1, pupils also made significant progress in the Year I Phonics Screening check based on their different starting

points, and achievedTSo/o. EYFS achievedTSo/o of pupils with GLD.

Brookside Primary has also maintained the LPPA Award which highlights the continuous work to support parents,

guardians and cárers. The pupils also benefit from a diverse and knowledge rich curriculum, facilitated both

internally and externally to ihe classroom. A wide range of professionals' work with the pupils to enrich the

curriculúm offer, and t-n¡s ¡s enhanced by a wide range of workshops and clubs, strengthening the holistic

development of each pupil, as they 'Strive for Excellence Everyday'.
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With the increase of SEND needs facing the Borough, and indeed Nationally, Brookside has hosted workshops
and coffee mornings to assist parents, guardians and carers with strategies and plans to help them betier
understand their children's needs.

Key Stage 2

lndicators 2022*.
2023

Published
2024*

Provisional

Local
Authority
Average

2023

National
Average
England

2023
Progress Score Reading (SS) -1.0 -0.3 nla 0.3 0
Progress Score Writing (SS) -1.4 0.5 nla 0.71 0

Progress Score Mathematics (SS) 0.5 -0.3 nla 1.37 0
Average Scale Score Reading 101.7 'r05.5 1 06.1 105.3 105

Average Scale Score Mathematics 102.9 104.5 104.8 105.6 104
Average Scale Score GPS 106.'! 105.4 107.6 107 '105

Reading, Writing and Mathematics (%Exp) 53.1Yo 620/o 620/o 630/o 60%
unavailable for 2024 until

**No pr¡mary test or assessment data has been published for 2020,2021 ot 2022
n/a refers to no progress data available due to no KSI baseline de/(ain 2022

Rosedale College

Rosedale College performance outcomes at Key Stage Four (KS4) continue to be well above national average for
progress and attainment, with students consistently out-performing their peers, both locally and nationally. This
academic year, Rosedale college students continue to be above average progress.

Rosedale College experienced many highlights and successes during the academic year. ln March 2024, the
College retained Flagship status in terms of the lnclusion Quality Mark (lQM). "Parents shared how students are
accepted in Years 10 and 11 and how wellthey are supported. The staff are very supportive. There is exceltent
communicat¡on and it is indeed a paftnersh¡p between parents and the Cotlege. One parent spoke about how his
son now comes back to the College to help out. This started as a work experience placement and is now a weekty
event. studenfs sa/d that they are listened to and feel able to make suggesfions".

Following the Ofsted visit in 2023, where the College had a graded inspection (Section 5), and achieved 'Good' in
all categories. The College continues to be committed to achieving'Outstanding'at its next inspection.

GGSE Examination performance

GCSE Examínation performance 2024

2022 2023* National
Average
England

2024

Validated
data

Published
data

All students 136 r38 136 361 9 697839

Strong pass (grade 5 or above) in English
and Mathematics (all students) 64.7% 660/o 55.9% 53.3% 42.8o/o

Standard pass (grade 4 or above) in English
and Mathematics (all students) 79% 80o/o 67.60/o 70.6% 60.4%

Strong pass (grade 5 or above) in English
Baccalaureate qualifi cations (all students) 260/o 20% 13.2% 21.5% 16.6Yo

Standard pass (grade 4 or above) in English
Baccalaureate qualifications (all students) 3Qo/o 28o/o 20.60/o 29.8% 23.2%

Progress 8 score 0.82 0.88 0.31 N/A -0.03

Progress I score by English 1.10 '1.06 0.45 N/A -0.04
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Progress I score by Mathematics 0.78 0.9 0.19 N/A -0.03

Progress I score by English Baccalaureate
slots

0.57 0.73 0.1 1

N/A
-0.03

Progress I open element 0.9 0.9 0.47 N/A -0.04

Attainment I score 56.13 55.7 49.3 49.3 44.32

Attainment I score by English 12.42 12.2 10.9 10.6 9.3

Attainment 8 score by Mathematics 10.81 't 1.0 9.5 9.8 8.6

Attainment I score by English Baccalaureate
slots

15.59 15.8 13.8 14.5 13.2

Attainment I open element 17.31 16.8 15.1 14.4 13.2

At post 16, Rosedale College offers a wide range of courses to support diverse career paths and individual

asp¡rations, with students progress¡ng on to higher education. This has resulted in significant improvement over

the last three years in terms of 'A' level grades achieved.

Rosedale College's Ofsted lnspection (July 2023) achieved glowing praise about the Post 16 provision'

lnspectors noted "Leaders have created an ambitious curriculum, which enables pupls to achieve well in their

academic quatifications, inctuding in the sixth form"' and "The quality of careers education is strongest in the

Sixth Form, with teaders providing access to a weatth of programmes and scholarships and personalised

careers guidance".

ln Summer 2024, students engaging with applied subjects continued to do well by achieving over national

average with a point score of 33.6 (Distinction) supporting their aspirations of their applied pathway. lt is also

important to note that 100% of students achieved a Grade C and above in Further Mathematics, Business and

Politics.

Students progressed to institutions of higher education, including Warwick University, Queen Mary's University

of London, Royal Holloway, Kings College, University of Kent, University of Surrey, Brunel University, City

University of London, and Greenwich University. lt was also pleasing to note that our students have secured

notable apprenticeships at Ernst & Young (a 'big four' accounting firm), Rolls Royce, Jaguar and Land Rover in

line with the College's specialism of Engineering.

Post 16 A Level Results

16 to data will be

20232022 Natlonal
Average
England

2429
Published

data

Performance
Tables

Summary

lndicators

177 1 29220141 5034Students with A Level Entry

C+ (34.16)c (2e.87) c (31.61)B- (3s.1e) c- (25.e3)Average A Level Grade

C+ (34.68)Q,+ (3a.17) C+ (31.98)C+ (33.75) C+ (31.79)Grade and Points for best 3 A
Levels

15.8%15o/o 10.4o/o18.8% 7.7%% of pupils AAB in A Levels
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Hewens Gollege

Hewens College has had a very successful academic year. The College celebrated the best results with the year
l1 cohort achieving a positive progress score of +0.20. The College has embedded a clear vision of developing a
'student who is ready'with a clear set of behaviours the students must demonstrate. This along with a high quality
and robust personal development drive, a focus on literacy and a strategic 3-year careers programme all
contributed to improving results. There has been an increase in offer and participation in extra-curricular clubs
which has motivated and inspired students. The wider curriculum has been further developed with key workshops,
STEM events and keynote speaker assemblies threaded throughout the year for all students.

Hewens College secured a positive Monitoring Visit Report in April2024. lt was highlighted that leaders have
focused on the College's key priorities for improvement. The implementation of the change has been carefully
considered and has become embedded in the culture of the College. Staff workload and wellbeing have been
carefully managed through the process of change. The Trust has provided support and developmental
opportunities to help facilitate the school improvement. Highlights alongside the results included achieving a full
100% assessment on the Gatsby Benchmarks for four consecutive assessments, the reaccreditation of LppA,
and the continued development of a strong partnership with the Chiltern Learning Trust. The College is proud of
the vibrant and successful Student Leadership programme and the high-quality pastoral care that ensures
students are safe and looked after.

Alongside the clear improvement, Hewens College is very forensic and reflective about the challenges faced. The
College continues to have a significant number of mid-year admissions and intake of students having l¡¡e or no
prior education and English as an Additional Language (EAL). The EAL strategy at Hewens College enables
students to be ready to sit public exams. Attendance remains a key priority for improvement and with the
implementation of a newtracking system and an increase of staffing, the College has seen a2o/orise in overall
attendance and persistent absence has been reduced by nearly 50%. Hewens College is on an upward trajectory
and has gone from strength to strength since the Ofsted report of 2023.

GCSE Examination performance 2024

2022 2023 Nat¡onal
Average
England

2024

Published
data

Published
data

All students 67 80 86 361 9 697839
Strong pass (grade 5 or above) in English
and Mathematics (all students) 31 .34o/o 35% 291% 53.3% 42.8o/o

Standard pass (grade 4 or above) in English
and Mathematics (all students) 57o/o 50o/o 50% 70.60/o 60.4o/o

Strong pass (grade 5 or above) in English
Baccalaureate qualifications (all students) 13% 16% 9.3o/o 21 .5o/o 16.6%

Standard pass (grade 4 or above) in English
Baccalaureate qualifications (all students) 27% 21% 17.4o/o 29.8% 23.2%

Progress 8 score -0.3 -0.13 0.2 N/A -0.03

Progress I score by English -0.49 0.02 0.52 N/A -0.04

Progress 8 score by Mathematics -0.17 0.00 -0.21 N/A -0.03

Progress I score by English
Baccalaureate slots 0 -0.16 0.3

N/A
-0.03

Progress I open element -0.59 -0.29 0.09 N/A -0.04

Attainment 8 score 39.4 39.8 42.0 49.3 44.32

Attainment I score by English 8.1 8.7 9.7 10.6 o2

Attainment I score by Mathematics 7.7 7.8 t.o 9.8 8.6
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Attainment I score by English
Baccalaureate slots

12.2 11.6 12.7 14.5 13.2

Attainment 8 open element 11.35 11.6 12 14.4 13.2

Hewens College's Post 16 has seen an improvement in their average A Level grade which is now more in line

with the LA average.

Post l6 A Level Results

*16to data will be published in February

Parkside Studio College

The College was rated "Good" by Ofsted in its last inspection and continues to provide high quality education by a

team of specialist teachers and learning coaches. Specialist teachers in these areas have been recruited this year

and are making huge strides in ensuring that these resources are fully utilised, Parkside continues on its journey

towards achieving outstanding judgements in all inspection categories.

tinues on its journey towards achieving outstanding judgements in all inspection categories

Parkside Studio College has seen improved academic performance for EAL students. All of the students who

arrived from overseas with no language acquisition were supported to achieve GCSEs and vocational

qualifications in record time. lnterventions and booster sessions were timely and well-received by students'

who arrived from overseas with no language acquisition were supported to achieve GCSEs and vocational

qualifications in record time. lnterventions and booster sessions were timely and well-received by students.

The College continues to place a strong emphasis on creating a supportive and inclusive community. This year,

the College has been praised for its excellent pastoral care and focus on student well-being during safeguarding

learning walks. lnitiatives such as weekly Friday clubs, which include a range of extra-curricular activities like

photography, drama, calisthenics, and food technology, have helped foster a sense of community and belonging

among students and staff. Parkside Studio College has made significant strides in strengthening its relationship

with parents, guardians and carers. This was further recognised by achieving the LPPA Award in February 2024'

All Year 11 students attended external work experience placements prior to their summer examinations.

The College continues to provide experiences for the students to ensure they are able to be successful such as

parlicipation in the Jack Petchey 'Speak Out Challenge', showcasing their public speaking skills and confidence;

many students entered the Young Writers Competition, with several pieces being selected for publication.

Furthermore, arrangements were made in respect of all subject areas for out of class learning, such as visits to

the Centre of the Cell, the Science Museum, London Zoo, the Bank of England and more. These trips provided

students with a deeper understanding of scientific concepts and their real-world applications thereby trying to

close the gap in their understanding and being able to make progress in their learning.
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Average
England

2023

Published
data

Performance
Tables Summary

lndicators

177 1 2922014 42Students with A Level Entry

C+ (34.16)c (30.77) c (31.61)SUPP D- (22.78)Average A Level Grade

C+ (34.68)C+ (33.33) C+ (31.98)SUPP E (1 1.1 1)Grade and Points for best 3 A Levels

10.4% 15.8o/oSUPP o% 0o/o% of pupils AAB in A Levels



STEM education continues to be a focus at Parkside Studio College. The College hosted events in collaboration
with Smallpeice Trust and HS2, providing students with opportunities to engage in engineering and technology
projects. The College has also been outward facing with local primaries by providing a coding competition and
invited the local primary schools to the radio station for a 1O-session coding course. The BTD Gaming Expo was
also a huge success, helping to raise the profile of Parkside and engage students in the exciting world of creative
media, gaming and technology.

One of the ongoing priorities has been to inspire students to be ambitious in their next steps at post 16. The
Careers Advice and Guidance Programme is a strength, with all students being provided w¡in the opportunity to
participate in at least one externalwork experience placement.

GCSE Examination performance 2024

2022 2023 National
Average
England

2424

Published
data

Fublishcd
data

All students 27 16 16 361 9 697839

Strong pass (grade 5 or above) in English
and Mathematics (all students) 7.41% 25% 25% 53.3o/o 42.8o/o

Standard pass (grade 4 or above) in English
and Mathematics (all students) 41o/o 50o/o 43.8o/o 70.60/0 60¿%

Strong pass (grade 5 or above) in English
Baccalaureate qualifications (all students) 0% 0o/o 0% 21.5% 16.6%

Standard pass (grade 4 or above) in English
Baccalaureate qualifìcations (all students) 0% 0o/o 0% 29.8% 23.2%

Progress I score -0.82 -0.29 -1.31 N/A -0.03

Progress I score by English -0.76 -0.12 -0.46 N/A -0.04

Progress I score by Mathematics -0.38 0.07 -0.71 NiA -0.03

Progress I score by English
Baccalaureate slots -1.37 -0.8 -2.02

N/A
-0.03

Progress I open element -0.58 -0.14 -r.56 N/A -0.04

Attainment 8 score 31.1 32.1 35.2 49.3 44.32

Attainment I score by English 7.19 7.0 8.5 10.6 9.3

Attainment I score by Mathematics 6.4 6.8 I 9.8 8.6
Attainment 8 score by English Baccalaureate
slots 7.15 8.4 9.4 14.5 13.2

Attainment I open element 10.47 9.9 9.3 14.4 13.2

Post l6 A Level Results

2022 2023

lndicators
Performance

Tables
Summary

Published
data

Nat¡onal
Average
England

2023
Students with A Level Entry 0 1 1 177 1 292201

Average A Level Grade sup sup sup c (31.61) C+ (34.16)

Grade and Points for best 3 A Levels sup sup sup c+ (31.98) C+ (34.68)

% of pupils AAB in A Levels sup sup sup 10.4o/o 15.8o/o

to l8 data will be published
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De Salis Studio Gollege

De Salis Studio College is a unique specialist business college offering an innovative curriculum which combines

high quality teaching and learning with well-structured project-based activities. Learning goes beyond the

clãssróom ând into the wider business community. Students at the College continue to gain qualifications in

traditional core subjects, such as English, Mathematics and Science, but due to the nature of the College, GCSE

Business Studies is also treated as a core subject and studied by all students. AAT Business Skills,

Bookkeeping, and Accounting are also studied by many of the students, imbuing the curriculum with a genuine

element bf þrofessional studies and world of work experience. Retail, Business and Economics being popular

option choices serves to augment a skills and knowledge rich curriculum at a College where 'Education Means

Business.'This dovetails cohlrently with our Social Sciences options: AS Level Law is delivered at Key Stage 4 in

a Courtroom setting, and Socioloéy and Psychology adopt a similarly experiential approach with academically

relevant trips and guest speakers being integral curricular elements.

De Salis Studio College continues to be a 'Good' school with a positive and aspirational culture that the College

has managed to create. The College also has strong careers and work experience programmes, with all students

engaging with at least one work placement over the academic year. The large number of trips and outings that

gave curricular realworld context and therefore boosted students'conceptual understanding, thereby contributing

substantively to their academic progress, as was the commitment to SEN and EAL students and their impressive

progress. The students are proud to belong to De Salis Studio College, and thrive in a learning community that

celebrates diversity and multi-cultural values.

De Salis students obtained strong passes in English and Mathematics and remain above both local and national

average. This year the Progress 8 score for Mathematics was phenomenal at 1.05, placing De Salis first within

the Bõrough fór this elemeñt. De Salis continues to ensure that even though students only join the College. in

KS4, they-are provided with every opportunity to excel and ensure that all foundations are in place to provide

students w¡tn v¡tal life chances. Thìs is further demonstrated through the second highest Attainment 8 score in the

Borough for Disadvantaged students.

GCSE Examination performance 2024

2022 2023 National
Average
England

2024

Published
data

Published
data

All students 31 37 45 361 I 697839

Strong pass (grade 5 or above) in

English and Mathematics (all
students)

70.97% 57o/o 68.9% 53.3o/o 42.8%

Standard pass (grade 4 or above) in

English and Mathematics (all
students)

81o/o 70% 86.7Yo 70.6% 60¿%

Strong pass (grade 5 or above) in
English Baccalaureate qualifications
fall students)

13o/o 3o/o 2-2o/o 21.5o/o 16.60/o

Standard pass (grade 4 or above) in

English Baccalau reate qualifications 13To 8o/o 2.2% 29.8% 23.2%

Progress 8 score 0.38 0.'15 0.47 N/A -0.03

Progress 8 score by English 0.45 0.6 0.52 NiA -0.04

Progress 8 score by Mathematics 0.91 0.35 1.05 N/A -0.03

Progress I score by English
Baccalaureate slots

0.14 -0.09 0.10
N/A

-0.03

Progress I open element 0.17 -0.04 0.43 N/A -0.04

Attainment I score 53.66 48.0 55.1 49.3 44.32

Attainment I score by English 11.4 11.1 11.8 10.6 9.3

Attainment 8 score by Mathematics 11.4 9.7 12.1 9.8 8.6
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Attainment I score by English
Baccalaureate slots

15.23
13.5 15.1 14.5 13.2

Attainment I open element 15.66 13.7 16.1 14.4 13.2

The students who engaged in Applied Learning secured an average of Distinction* with a point score of 50 and an
overall positive value added score of +0.6. The provision that De Salis Studio College offers has ensured that
Post 16 students were able to secure places at Russell Group universities to continue i-heir studies in psychology,
Law and Criminology.

Post 16 A Level Results

data will be 2025

Going Goncern

After making appropriate enquiries with the Local Authority, given its responsibility for planning school places, the
Trust remains confident that it will be in a position to draw down adequate resources into the foreseeable future.
For this reason, the board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these accounts, and so
continue to prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis. Further details of this can be found in the
Statement of Accounting Policies. The Trust's financial sustainability and consideration of going concern continues
to be strong with spend being closely monitored and careful use of the Trust's surpluses to support this.

Promoting the success of the company

The Board has acted in a way most likely to promote the success of the company to achieve its charitable
purposes, and in so doing have had regard to:

. The likely consequences of any decision in the long term
¡ The interests of the company's employees
. The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
o The impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment
. The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct
. The need to act fairly as between members of the company

Financial Review

As in previous reporting periods, the Trust continues to obtain the majority of its income from the ESFA in the
form of grants, some of which are restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE and other
government bodies during the year ended 31 August 2024 and the associated expenditure are shown as
restricted funds in the statement of financial activities.

2022 2023

lndicators Performance
Tables

Sunnmary

Provisional
data

ilational
Average
England

2029

Students with A Level Entry I 15 3 177 1 292201

Average A Level Grade D+ (24.44) C+ (33.2.1) C+ (34.5) c (3r.61) C+ (34.16)

Grade and Points for best 3 A Levels B-(36.67) c+ (34.33) B-(36.67) c+ (31.98) c+ (34.68)

% of pupils AAB in A Levels 0% 10o/o 3% 10.4o/o 15.8o/o
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The Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFA. ln accordance with the Statement of

Recommended Practice,'Accounting and Reporting by Charities'(SORP (FRS 102)), such grants are shown in

the statement of financial activities as restricted income within the fixed assets fund. The restricted fixed asset

fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful economic life of the assets

concerned.

During the year ended 31 August 2024,tolal expenditure of t25,625k was met by grant funding from the ESFA

and other government bodies together with other incoming resources. Total incoming resources for the year of

t22,BO5k. Total net deficit for the year ended 31.t August 2024 was t2,820k, before actuarial gains and losses,

which reflects the planned investment of accumulated funds brought forward into the Schools in the form of

refurbishments and improvement works.

Our combined pension liability, valued in line with FRS 102, although continuing to cause concern for The

Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust, as it does with all other academies in the UK, has seen the deficit of Êl,017M

decrease by Ê389k in 2023124 with a new liability of t628k. This is based on the assumptions, market forces,

reliances and limitations by Hymans Robertson LLP and documented in the Actuarial Valuation. The Trust

continues to make contributions to the Scheme in accordance with the Scheme's strategy to fund the deficit over

a period of 20 years. The Trust currently pays22.9o/o employer's superannuation per employee paying into the

scheme.

Reserves Policy

The Trust has a strong local presence offering high quality educational provision from Early Years to

apprenticeships and adult education. lt has a fine reputation built entirely on its demonstrable capacity to deliver

educational transformation in the Schools and Colleges which it sponsors. As such, there is an imperative to

build and maintain a healthy level of reserves in order to safeguard the delivery of new provision which relies on

the timescales and processes of other external organisations. As such, the Board regularly reviews the level of

reserves held by the Trust, factoring this in to its annual budget planning process. This review encompasses the

nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of

reserves. The Board determines what the level of free reserves should be with an aim to ensure that there are

sufficient funds in place to cover any delays between spending and receipt of grants. ln short, the reserves

cushion the Company in terms of cash flow and also allows the Board to address any unforeseen emergencies

which might arise from the urgent maintenance of aging buildings previously designated as life expired. Rosedale

College has been identified as one of the first 50 schools nationally to be included in the Schools Rebuilding

project by the DfE and has now engaged and completed the process of Phase 2. This encompassed the

procurement of the contractor which was undertaken by the DFE. The plans are now with the Local Authority
planning Department. ln line with the DFE, the Trust has ringfenced Ê2M towards the cost of new fixed furniture

and equipment as the anticipated spend, of which Ê1m has been designated for this.

The Trust is responsible for the maintenance and development of estates over three separate campus sites;

buildings which vary enormously in terms of age, condition and suitability. At each campus site there is evidence

of phased expansion over decades, clearly highlighted by changes in architectural style, use of materials and

building technologies adopted in the construction of different teaching blocks.

At the Hewens campus, for example, much of the accommodation dates from the original 1948 build with other

teaching btocks having been added in the 1960's, 1980's and 1990's. A significant portion of the site has now

been totally remodeled with a combination of ESFA funding, sponsorship and other surpluses. The remainder of

the site however, is in poor condition for the above reasons. The Trust, in assuming responsibility for the campus'

has invested heavily in mainly infrastructure projects including a boiler and heating plant replacement programme,

window and door replacement programme, roof replacement programme and the complete upgrade of all

incoming services and utilities. Work has continued in terms of the mechanical and electrical installation across

the whole campus. Beyond this, there are other priorities which arise from proposed changes in the curriculum

and the need for a general upgrade in terms of the Music Block and Learning Resources Centre. Some of the

site is not DDA compliant in terms of accessibility. All of the above work is essential if the campus is to become
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an attractive and meaningful option for local families. Like all of the Trust's estate, no investment was made by
the LA or others when Building schools for the Future funding was available.

Hewens Campus (Hewens College, Hewens Primary School and De Salis Studio College):

. Refurbishment of Library/Resources area (Hewens College) - in progress

' Refurbishment of Music Block - parfly completed.
. lnstallation of electronic gates (campus) - in planning

' lnstallation and refurbishment of playground area (Hewens Primary) - partly completed

' lnstallation of lift and upgrade of adjacent cloakroom area (Hewens Primary) - in planning

' lnstallation of replacement lift and water table remedial work (Hewens College) - in planning

' lnstallation of a floodlit Multi Use Games Area (De Salis) - in planning

Rosedale Campus (Rosedale College, Rosedale Primary Schooland Parkside Studio College):

The DFE's Schools Rebuilding Programme has determined Rosedale College to be in the first wave of S0 schools
nationally to be re-built/refurbished as outlined above. As part of this project, the DFE has agreed to refurbish the
Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) building within the scope of the project. This project
is due to commence early in 2025.

With the forthcoming new build at Rosedale College, Ê2M has been ring fenced for new FF&E

' Replacement of the shock pad and synthetic turf surface and running track (Rosedale College) - in
planning

. lnstallation of electronic gates (campus) - on hold due to school rebuild project

' Provision of science laboratories (2 in number) and preparation room (Parkside Studio College) - in
planning

. Paving (Parkside Studio College) - heatth and safety - parfly compteted

. Ventilation unit in kitchen (Parkside Studio College) - in ptanning

. Roofing repairs (Rosedale Primary) - completed

Brookside Primary Campus

The main teaching accommodation is housed in a concrete prefabricated single storey structure laid out on a grid
system. There is also a new teaching block which was built in 2011112 to provide for Year 5 and Year 6 pupils.
lnvestment has been made over the last three years in terms of replacement roof coverings, ICT infrastructure,
catering facilities and toilet refurbishment as well as the outdoor play areas.

lnstallation of a floodlit Multi Use Games Area - in planning
Roofing repairs - in planning
Boiler replacement in Year 5/ô Building

Wth the London Borough of Hillingdon having taken back possession of the school caretakers house, the security of
the site is not assured. To this end, enquiries are being made in order to future proof site security.

With all of the above in mind, the Trust will allocate funding to some but not all of the projects identified above in
accordance with health and safety priorities and curriculum development. ln some instances, the projects listed
will need to be completed in the absence of further ESFA funding.

As at 31 August 2024 the Trust Balance Sheet had total funds of t72,248k. This comprises restricted fixed
assets fund of î67,547k (being t67,547 fixed assets plus Ê0k capital funds unspent) as at 3lstAugust 2024.
Restricted general fund -8628k (being [0k restricted general reserve less Ê628k restricted pensions deficit) and
total unrestricted fund of Ê5,329k, of which Ê1,000k is designated for the new build at Rosedale College and
1.4,329k general unrestricted fund.
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The deficit position of the pension scheme is not a current liability but will result in a cash flow effect for the Trust

in the form of an increase or decrease in employers' pension contributions over a period of years.

lnvestment Policy

Under the Articles of Association, the Trust has the power to invest any funds not immediately required for the

furtherance of its charitable objects while ensuring that due regard is made to ensure that any investments are

prudent and suitable to its needs. The Trust maximises available interest income through the use of deposit accounts.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

ln accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Trust is required to demonstrate how it identifies and mitigates any

potential risk or uncertainties that might otherwise threaten its ability to continue in operational existence. To address

this requirement, the Trust has established a risk management process which operates at both a high level to review

the overall business of the Trust and also in terms of individual developmental projects. This follows the traditional

orthodoxy found elsewhere in project management using the principles of an overall Risk Register and interim red-

amber-green ('RAG) rated update reports.

Principal risks and uncertainties identified are as follows:

Pupil Recruitment - Rosedale College continues to be an oversubscribed popular school. The Trust has

identified pupil recruitment risks in terms of its studio colleges and one of its primary schools which is located

within an area of high deprivation and a transient population. ln terms of its studio colleges, a consultation

document was sent out to stakeholders regarding possible changes to the new academic year and published

terms and holidays for 2023124 and beyond. Accordingly, the Trust sought to understand the views of its

stakeholders concerning the proposal to see if alignment of the studio college calendar with that of the other

settings across the Trust would help with its pupil recruitment. The overwhelming majority of returns came

from local families who indicated they agreed with the proposal for change. By removing this barrier, De

Salis Studio College has seen a significant increase in its student numbers. However, the Trust continues to

work on its marketing strategy so that the aims and objectives of the studio colleges are better understood,

working locally with other schools as well as the Local Authority to showcase the provision to prospective

students. The Strategic Planning Group continues to review the offer and ensure that vocational pathways

lead to progression routes at Post 16.

¡

Recruitment of teachers - There can be no doubt the crisis has continued within the teaching profession

regarding the recruitment and retention of high quality teachers. This has been widely reported, resulting in

various initiatives by the Government to recruit English, Mathematics and Science specialists in particular. As

previously reported, the Board identified this as a major risk and continued to take steps to recruit teachers.

The Trust has this year utilised the 'Teaching Vacancies' portal on the Gov.UK website. The Trust has

maintained links with Teach First and has engaged with various University fairs to support the 'Get into

Teaching' programme. This has proved to be extremely successful with the vast majority of these individuals

having achieved qualified teacher status within the Trust. The Trust continues to recruit good graduates as

teaching and learning associates/teaching partners offering training and support to those who wish to

become qualified teachers through the assessment only route. Active succession planning is in place.

Trust's Estate - Trustee's responsibilities include ensuring the Trust's estate is safe, well maintained and

complies with relevant regulations. Assurance is given through regular health and safety audits, fire risk

assessments, electrical assessments, plant inspections by the Trust's insurers together with various

regular maintenance contracts in place. As part of the Trust's management of risk, regular discussions at

board level take place at each meeting. The Trust's Risk Management and Risk Register, continues to

be discussed and updated at both Board Level and with the Finance, Resources and Risk Management

Committee, which takes into account the Business Continuity Plan.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and policies

The Trust is exposed to minimal financial risk as its assets consist mainly of funds held while other assets and
liabilities are generally small in comparison. The main objective is to ensure that the Trust has an effective
budget and monitoring system in place to ensure that there are sufficient funds to meet our key objectives.

Fundraising

The Academy Trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was
monitored by the Trustees or by the Board.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting.

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period I September 2023to 3l August 2024

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions
(kwh)

3,529,7 52 (1,402,985 electricity and 2,126,767 gas)

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Gas consumption

Owned transport: mini-buses

Total scope 1

2,126,767 kWh x 0.18316 = 389,538.64 kgCO2e
= 389.54 tGO2e

Minibus 1:

Minibus 2:
Minibus 3:
Minibus 4:

6246
5590
4061
219s

18,092 miles x 1.17682
= 21,291.07k\ /h

18,092 miles = 29,947.2km
(29947 .2x0.18315) = 5484.82 kgCO2e

= 5.48 tCO2e

395.02 tGO2e

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Purchased electricity
1402985 kWh x 0.21233 = 297895.8 kgCO2e

= 297.9 tCO2e

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Business travel in employee-owned vehicles 0

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 692.92 tCO2e
07 kwh 752 +21291

lntensitv ratio

Tonnes CO2e per pupil
692.92 tCO2e / 2805 pupils

= 0.25 tGO2e per pupit
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lntensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil' the

recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

Energy efficiency has decreased in that greater use of LEDs and timer/sensitivity sensors have been deployed.

The Trust is continuing to change lighting to LED in a phased approach. We continued to make use of online

meetings across our campuses for staff meetings, training and executive meetings which help to reduce the need

for travel between sites. All interactive boards have been set on a timer to turn off at a set time every evening.

Saving on gas consumption was enabled due to installation of new boiler system. ln April 2024, meters were

installed on all campuses in order to track where energy savings could be made'

PIans for Future Periods

The strategic mission of The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust remains unchanged in that its declared purpose is

to secure high quality educational provision in Hayes and the adjoining areas. Unlike other multi academy trusts,

there is no interest in or appetite for the acquisition of a string of academies across a wide geographical area in

that the principles on which the Trust was founded are to increase the choice and diversity of provision for local

families. There are ongoing developments in all areas of work from pre-school to apprenticeships and training.

With this in mind, the Board has established a tradition of evaluating all of the services it provides and using this

feedback to determine where potential and future gaps may exist. To triangulate this evidence base, the Trust

makes good use of demographic data and other information from a variety of sources, much of which is held by

the Local Authority. The Trust continues to reconfigure its school estate to reflect changing priorities highlighted

at local and national levels. ln order to consolidate these developments, there will be an ongoing focus on Early

Years provision and alternative pathways for 14 to 19 year olds.

Moving forward into the new financial and academic year, the Board of Trustees agreed Marie Ashley, lnterim

CEO rI¡ould continue in post. She will continue to oversee all current and new projects on behalf of the Trust

including the re-build of Rosedale College under the Schools Rebuilding Team (DFE).

ln moving into the next phase, Trustees remain confident in the knowledge that the Trust will continue to deliver

the best þossible educaiion for stakeholders. The Board remains assured that appropriate measures are in place

to ensure continuity of learning remains paramount with no disruption to the day-to-day operation of the service.

Auditor

ln so far as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

. the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant

audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The auditors, Moore Kingston Smith LLP, are deemed to be reappointed under section 487 (2) of the Companies

Act 2006.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the members of the Board, as the

company directors, on 11th December 2023 and signed on the Board's behalf by:

Stewart Duguid
Ghairman of the Board

23



Governance Statement for the year ended 3l August 2024

Scope of Responsibility

As a central.government.public body, The R.osedale Hewens Academy Trust is required to provide assurance that it
is appropriately managed in terms of controlling the resources for which it is resporisibie.

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for maintaining an effective and appropriate system of
control, financial and otherwise. With that said, any such system can only be designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in relation to the Trust's declared business objéctives. ln th-is sense, the
scope of responsibility is to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance against maierial
misstatement or loss.

As Trustees we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in the Department for Education (thereafter
'DFE') Governance Handbook and competency framework for governance. lt was found there was a *ide range
of skills and competencies which fit into all of our settings, such as expertise in business; hospitality and cateririg;
finance; assessing of risk to the Trust; health and safety audits; healthy eating; well being exþertise. Full trainin-gis given to eaeh trustee/governor to enable them to be outward facing and tocuseá on learning anã
understanding the realms of accountability. This enables the Trustees to have the appropriate knowledgä and
skills to support the Trust.

The Trust has delegaTed day{o-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management. These
requirements and responsibilities are assigned through the funding ãgreement between The Rosedale
Hewens Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They ãre also responsible for reporting to
the Board any materialweaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information provided below supplements that described in the Report of the Academy Board and in the
Statement of Responsibilities. There was one Annual General Meeting of the Members, attended by all held on
22nd Augusl2024. The Board met formally each term with the attendance at each of the three meetings as
follows:-

Academy Board Meetings
Trustee
S. Duguid (Chair)
N. Deas
A. Cohen
R. Quick
H. Abubakar
Senior Management:
M. Ashley
H. Faure
S. Driscoll

Meetings Attended Out of a possible

The Board has maintained the effective use of funds with three full Board Meetings and four full Finance,
Resources and Risk Management Committee Meetings. The committee is made up as-follows:-

Finance and Resources Committee Meetings
Governor Meetings Attended
A. Cohen (ChaiQ 4
S. Duguid 4
N. Deas 3
Senior Management:
M. Ashley 4
H. Faure 4

Out of a possible

ln assessing the Board's performance and effectiveness, the Academy Board has a wide and varied skill set
from the Trustees. lt allows the Trust to be confident in its ability to actively and effectively interrogate data.
Regular skill set audits are carried out to ensure that there is suitable quality, competency, knowledge,
understanding and skills for achieving clear and transparent challenge from the Academy Board. Trustees are
skilled and active participants and were well placed to deal with particular challenges this financial and academic
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year. Governance audits are carried our with any change of circumstances. The next review is due in 2025

together with an external review.

ln regard to the quality of the data used by the Board and its acceptability, the Academy Board is satisfied that

the quality of data is valid and reliable. There are various sources of data directly aligned to standards and

operations with a clear and transparent process to gathering the information for submission and scrutiny. This

allows the Academy Board to be able to construct any relevant questions to support and challenge the given

data. All data is extracted directly from the Trust Management lnformation System and the Finance System.

Conflict of interest

The trust maintains a register of interest, all interests are declared at each trust and other committee meetings.

The trusts financial regulations ensure robust and transparent procurement processes are followed, and that any

related party transactions are avoided where possible.

Review of Value for MoneY

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good

value in the u-se of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the

educational and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for

the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money

during each acãdemic year, and reports to the Board where value for money can be improved, including the

use õf benchmarking áata where available. The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered improved

value for money during the Year bY:

. Use of resources to achieve outstanding examination results as outlined in the Trustee's section

above, by enhancing and improving aspects of learning for all schools by setting up an interschool

curriculum timetable in order for each school to obtain the expertise of subject specialists. This has

enabled deployment of staff efficiently to support and target areas of the curriculum in need of
development ahd also incorporates SEND specialist provision across both the primary and secondary
phases within the Trust;

o The use of Devolved Capital Formula funding received via the ESFA (DFC) contributed towards

maintaining the Trust's estates by:-

a. New roof of Rosedale Primary School

b. Refreshment of ICT Laptops for staff (electronic registration)

c. Refurbishment projects - Hewens College to support the delivery of the curriculum.

. Regular review of the list of contracts for each campus in the Trust ensuring value for money and

safe, well maintained upkeep of the Trust's estates'

. Tender for Trust's electricity supply thereby creating significant savings - April2024.

. Tender for new lease of photocopiers and printers, together with MyQ software thereby reducing
paper usage with the implementation of further management controls continues to be in place - April

2024;

¡ Savings continue in the Telephony set up between all three campuses which has contributed to the

reduction of telephone charges as these are now over the network between campuses,

¡ The continued updating of all websites including school newsletters and information saving on

printing and postage for newsletters and letters home;

. The continuing procedure of BACS payments continues to make savings on postage, financial team

time and further securement against fraud;

. The Trusts's cashless payment system (iPay lmpact via CRB Cunningham) across each school

within the Trust, saving finance team time in administration of cash handling and further securement

against fraud. Also creating less risk in having to take cash to the bank.

. Continued benchmarking of products before purchase'
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The Purpose of the System of lnternal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and oO.¡ectiveð, to evaluate tñe likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to mânage them efficienly, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Rosedalé Hewens Academy Trust fór the
year ended 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and
compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board is of the view that there is a
lormal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in place
for the year ended -?1 August 2Q24 and up to the date of approval of lne Annual Report and Financial
Statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board.

The Risk and Gontrol Framework

The Trust system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegatiõn and accountability. ln
particular, it includes:

comprehensive budgeting and.monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Boarii;

rggular reviews by the Board..of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and
of major purchase plans, capitalworks and expenditure programmes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

identification and management of risks;

clarifyìng the responsibility- of the Senior Leadership Teams to implement the Board's policies and to
identify and evaluate risks for consideration;

ensuring .that employees understand that they have responsibility for internal control as part of their
accountability for achieving objectives;

embedding the control system in the Trust's operations so that it becomes part of the culture of the
Trust;

developed systems to respond quickly to evolving risks arising from factors within the Trust and to
changes in the external environment,

procedures..for reporting failings immediately to appropriate levels of management and the Board
together with details of corrective action being undertaken.

The Board has considered fhe need for a specific internal audit function and has decided not to appoint an internal
auditor. However, the Trust has continued to appoint DMC Accounting as an independent reviewer to carry out a
programme of internal checks. ln.particular, the checks carried out inclulded checking of purchase orders to dêtivery,
invoicing- and payment; income; bank reconciliations; payroll. The role includes giüing'advice on financial matteis
and. performing a range of checks on the Trust's financial systems. The revieú¡er ieports to the Board on any
matters on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board's financial responsibilities, anå
annually prepares an annual summary report to 

. the Board outtining the areas reviewed, key findingJ,
recommendations and conclusions to_tlgÞ the Board consider actions añd assess year on yeai pr<ígress. tÃle
confirm that the independent reviewer DMC Ac_counting delivered their schedule of worli as planñed. TherË were no
significant control issues to note. The board of trustees confirm their independent reviewei OlvlC Accounting givés
the Trustees further assurance in terms of internal controls.

These arrangements can.provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded,
transactions are authorised..and properly recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either prevänted or
would be detected within a timely period.

¡
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Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility-for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. Durin-g the year in question the review has been informed by the:

o work of the independent reviewer;

o work of the external auditor;

o financial management and governance self-assessment process;

o work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and

maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of the review of the system of internal

control by the Finance and Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

Gonclusion

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the

opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and

control.

Approved by order of the members of the Academy Board and signed on its behalf by:

Stewart Duguid
Chairman of the Board

Dated: 11th December 2024
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Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust, I have considered my responsibility to notify the
Academy Board and the Education and Skills Funding Agency of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, including for estates safety and management, under the
funding agreement under the Funding Agreement in place between the Trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust
Handbook 2023, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

I confirm that I and the Academy Board are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the
Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Academy Trust,s
Funding Agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook202J.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. lf any instances are identified aftei"the date of this statement, these will be notified tc the Board of Trustees
and the ESFA.

e
ch
Accounting Officer

Dated: 1 1th December 2024
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Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who act as Trustees for charitable activities of The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust and are

also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing

the Report of the Academy Board and the Financial Statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction

issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under company law the

Trustees must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including

its income and expenditure, for that period. ln preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts

Direction 20231o 2024;
make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain

the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position

of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies

Act 2006.They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial

and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are

also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included

on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and

dissemination of financial statements may differ from the legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Academy Board and signed on its behalf by:

Stewart Duguid
Ghairman of the Board

Dated: 11th December 2024
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lndependent Auditor's Report to the Members of The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust ('the Trust') for the year
ended 31 August 2024 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities (incorporating an lncomê &
Expenditure Account), the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the finanìial statements,
including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, inctuding FRS 102'ihe Financiat
Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland' (United Kingdom Generalty Accepted
Accounting Practice).

ln our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

¡ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (tSAs (UK)) and applicabte
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's ResponsiO¡Íiiies for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements ¡n ine Uf, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

ln auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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lndependent Auditor's Report to the Members of The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust
(continued)

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the strategic report and the trustees' annual report for the financial year for which

the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

the strategic report and the trustees' annual report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

ln the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the

audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the trustees' annual report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report

to you if, in our oPinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees' responsibilities statement set out on page 29, the trustees (who are also

the directors of the Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial

statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability

to continue-as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with lSAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with lSAs (UK) we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient ãnd appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the charitable company's internal control.

a

a

a

a

a

a

31



lndependent Auditor's Report to the Members of The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust
(continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncértainty exists related to eveñts or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to continue as a going
concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention ¡ñ our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statementi or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the charitable company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underly¡ng transactions and eventõ in a
manner that achieves fair presentatron.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control inat we
identify during our audit.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

lrregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect oi iriegularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below.

The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriatè responses to those
assessed risks; and to respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.
However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both managãment and
those charged with governance of the charitable company.

Our approach was as follows:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the charitable
company and considered that the most significant are the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act 2011,
the Charity SORP, the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024,hhe Academy Trust Handb ook 202J
and UK financial reporting standards as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

a

a

a

a

We obtained an understanding of how the charitable company complies with these requirements by
discussions with management and those charged with governance.

We assessed the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, including the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and how it might occur, by holding discussions with management and those
charged with governance.

We inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Based on this understanding, we designed specific appropriate audit procedures to identify instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations. This included making enquiries of management and those
charged with governance and obtaining additional corroborative evidence as required.
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Ét*o \Lhs6.. f.-s- Lt/
James Gross (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Moore Kingston Smith LLP, Statutory Auditor

lndependent Auditor's Report to the Members of The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust
(continued)

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of

instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions

reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher

than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for

example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part

16 of tire Companies nit ZOOO. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's

members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the

fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to any party other than the charitable

company and charitable óompany's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we

have formed.

Date: (\ Þ^r.,t-f, Ln¿-Y

The Shipping Building,
The Old Vinyl Factory
Hayes, Middlesex
UB3 1HA
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to The Rosedale
Hewens Academy Trust and the Education & skiils Funding Agency 

-

ln accordance with the.teiTs 9f our engagement letter dated 24 July 2023 and further to the requirements of the
Education Funding and Skills Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust during the year 1 Septembei 2023to 31 August 2024
have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament ãnd the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely for The Rosedale and Hewens Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Rosedale Hewens Academy
Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report ãnd for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other ihan The Rosedale Hewens
Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or Îor the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the reguirements of The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 8 April 2014 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant
from 1 September 2023 for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession,s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance witñ our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 20231o 2024. We report to you whetñeianything has come to
our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 Augusl 2024 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not coñform to the authorities which govern tfrem.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA . We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined ià
our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
. review of financial records for unusual transactions
. sample testing expenditure transactions were reasonable, appropriate and appropriately authorised in

accordance with the trust's procurement policy

. review the minutes of the Board and Audit Committee meetings
r review the processes and controls to identify related party transactions and potential conflicts
o obtaining formal representations from the Board and the accounting officer
. reviewing any evidence of impropriety resulting from our work and determining whether it was significant

enough to be referred to in our regularity report.

34



lndependent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to The Rosedale

Hewäns Academy Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

ln the course of our work, no other matters have come to our attention which suggest that in all material respects

the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not

been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities

which govern them

l'lnuo (t,.'-SÇ^, ç..-Æ. Lîrf
(,

oate: ft )^tÊ-'i".sr(,Dt-Y
Moore Kingston Smith LLP The Shipping Building,

The Old Vinyl Factory
Hayes, London,
UB3 lHA
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The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust
Statement of Financial Activities For the year ended 31 August 2024
(including lncome and Expenditure Account and Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses)

Note

Unrestricted
Funds
€000

331

Restricted
General
Funds
t000

22,123

Restr¡cted
Fixed Asset

Funds
e000

Total
2024
â000

Total
2023
e000

lncome and endowments from:
Donations and cap¡tal grants

Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy trust's
educationel operations

Other trading activ¡ties
lnveslmenls

fotal

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Char¡table activities:

Academy lrust educational operâtions

Total

Net ¡ncome / (expend¡ture)

Transfers between funds

Other rêcogn¡sed gains/(tosses):
Actuarial (losses) / gâins on defined
benefit pension schemes

Net movêment in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought foMard at 1 September 2023

Total funds carriêd forward at 3l August 2024

2 68 68

22,454

205

20,459

152
74

3

4
5

151
132

151

132

614 ------ø,1F

87

68 22,805 20.889

b

7

87

25,538

64

23,946

87

23,057 2,481

23,o57 2,48'l 26,625 24,010

527

(347)

(e34)

oÃ

356

(2,413)

252

(2,820l. (3,121't

356 770

12,464l. (2,3511

17

17,26

180

5,149

---- 5¡29

(483)

(145)

(2,161)

69,708 74,712 77,063

(628) 67,547 72,248 -------ì,rt,

All of the academy trust's activ¡ties derive from continu¡ng operat¡ons during the above two financial per¡ods.

All Recognised Gains and Losses are included in the statement of Finencial Aclivities.
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The Rosedale Hewens AcademY Trust
Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2024

Notes 2024
€000

6,270

(941)

67,547

(628)

2024
Ê000

2023
Ê000

2023
€000

69,708

6,021

75,729

(1,017)

---- ,4,?n

69,563

5,149

-----?4,ÃT

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and ¡n hand

L¡abilit¡es
Creditors : Amounts falling due w¡thin one year

Net current assets/(liabilit¡es)

Totâl assets less current liabilit¡es

Net assets excluding pens¡on liab¡lity

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of thê academy trust:
Restricted funds

Fixed asset fund
General fund
Pension reserve

12 67,547

Â âtô

6,249

14
15

128
771

5,371

141
824

16

7,214

(1,193)

26

72,876

(628)

72,248

17
17
17

17

69,708
872

n.Ct17\

Total restricted funds 66,919

5,329

-ìr,24s

Unrestr¡cted ¡ncome funds

Total funds

The f¡nancial statements on pages 36 to 57 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on 1 1 December 2024 and are signed on their behalf by:

Mar¡e Ashley
Chief Execut¡ve

Company Registration Number: 07683702 (England and Walesl



The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust
Statement of Cash Flow For the year ended 31 August 2024

Notês
2024
e000

2023
â000

Cash frows from operating activ¡ties

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activ¡fies

Cash f,ows from investing activ¡tles

Cash frows from f¡nancing act¡vities

Change in cash and cash equ¡valents in the reporting period

Cash and cash êquivalents at 1 September 2023

Cash end cash equivalênts at 3l August 2024

20

22

21

(758)

(2s2)

132

(4e3)

(563)

74

t878t f9821

6,249 7,231

23 5,371 6,249
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The Rosedale Hewens AcademY Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Statement of Accounting Policies

A summary of the principal accounting polic¡es adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation

uncerta¡nly, is set out below.

Company information
the Rosédale Hewens Academy Trust is a private company limited by guarantee domiciled and incorporated in England and Wales. The registered off¡ce is Wood

End Green Road, Hayes, United K¡ngdom, UB3 2SE

Basis of Preparation
The financ¡al statements of lhe academy trust, which is a public benef¡t entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under lhe historical cost convention in

accordance with the Financìal Reporting Standard Appticable in the UK and Republic of lrelând ( FRS 102), the Account¡ng and Reporting by Charities: 'Statement

of Recommended practice applicäile tð charities prepâring their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic

of lreland (FRS 102) (Charities soRp (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direct¡on 2023 to 2024 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the

Companies Act 2006.

The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefìt entity under FRS 102.

The f¡nanc¡al statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to

the nearest thousand Pounds.

Go¡ng Concern
The tiustees assess whether lhere are any mater¡al uncertainties relaled to events or cond¡tions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company

(,,academy trust,') to continue as a going concern. The trustees make th¡s assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from lhe date of authorisation fol

issue of the f¡nanciâl statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue ¡n operational existence for at leasi '12 monlhs

from the date of approval of these accounts and there are no material uncerlaint¡es about the acâdemy lrust's abil¡ly to continue as a go¡ng concern, thus they

cont¡nue to adopt the going concern bas¡s of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

lncome
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has ent¡tlement to the funds, the receipt is probable ând the amount can be measured reliably.

. Grants
Granls are included in the statement of F¡nanc¡al Acliv¡ties on a receivable bas¡s. The balance of income feceived for specific purposes but not expended during

the period is shown ¡n the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance related conditions therê is not

uncondit¡onal entiflement to the income ând ¡ts recognition is deferred and included in cred¡tors as deferred income until the performance-related cond¡tions are

met. Where entitlement occurs before income is rece¡ved, lhe ìncome ¡s accrued.

General Annual Grant ¡s recognised in full in the statement of F¡nâncial Activities in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period

is deducted from income and recognised as a l¡ability

Capital grants are recognised when there is entiilement and are not deferred over the l¡fe of lhe asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounls of capital

grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund

. Sponsorship lncome
Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activ¡ties ¡n the period in which it is

receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions), where the receipt ¡s probable and the amount can be reliably measured

. Donat¡ons
Donations are recognised on a rece¡vable basis (where there are no performanc+related condiiions), where the receipt is probable and the amount can be

rel¡ably measured.

. Other lncome
Ofher income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and io the extent lhe academy trust has provided the goods or services.



The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3'1 August 2024

I StatementofAccounting Policies(continuedl

. Donated goods, facil¡t¡es and services
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less lhe expected costs of sale. lf it is practicâl to assess lhe fair
velue at receipt, it is recognised in stock and "lncome from other trading activities". Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged egainst ,,lncome from other
trading act¡v¡ties" and the proceeds are recognised as "lncome from other trading activ¡ties". Where it is ¡mpractical to fâir value the items to the volume of low
value items ihey are not recognised in the financial statements unl¡l they are sold. This income is recognised within "lncome from other trading activities,'.

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair välue, unless it is ¡mpractical to measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the
donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations end a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and
depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance w¡th the academy trust's accounting policies.

. Donated Services and G¡fts in K¡nd
The value of donaled services and gifts in k¡nd provided to the academy trust are recognised at their open market value in the per¡od in which they âre
receivable as incoming resources, where the benefit to the academy trust can be reliably measured. An equivalent amount is included es expenditure under the
relevant heading in the Statement of Financial Activities, except where the g¡ft in kind was a fixed asset in which câse the amount is included in thê appropriate
fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in âccordance with academy trust's pol¡c¡es.

Expend¡ture
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or construct¡ve obligation to transfer economic benefit to a th¡rd party, it is probable ihat a transfer of economic
benefits w¡ll be required ín a selllement and the amount of the obligation Õan me be measured reliably. Expend¡ture ¡s classified by activity. The costs of each
activity ãre made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including the support costs involved in undertaking each acliv¡ty. Direct costs attributable to a
single activity and support costs which are not attr¡butable to a s¡ngle activity are apportioned between hose ectiv¡ties on a basis consistent with use of resources,
Cenlral staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

. Expenditure on Rais¡ng Funds
This includes all expend¡ture incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activ¡ties events and
non-charitable trading.

. Charitable Activities
These ere costs incurred on the academy trusl's educational operations, ¡ncluding support costs and cosls relating to ihe governance of the academy trust
apportioned to char¡table activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Tang¡ble F¡xed Assets
Assets costing e2,000 or more are cap¡talised as tang¡ble fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation end any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the a¡d of specific grants, e¡ther from lhe government or from the pr¡vate sector, they are included in the
Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful econom¡c life. Where there are specific cond¡tions attached to the funding requiring the
continued use of the asset, the related grants are crediled to a restricled fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activ¡t¡es and carrìed foMard in the Balance
Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged direclly to the restr¡cied f¡xed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Act¡vities. Where tangible fixed assets
have been acquired with unreslricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciat¡on is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to wr¡te off the cost of each asset on a straighfline bas¡s over its
expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold and long leasehold buildings
Finures, fitt¡ngs and equipment
lvlotor Vehicles

2Vo
'10-20o/o

2Oo/o

Assets in the course of construclion are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets ¡s not charged unt¡l they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be
recoverable. Shortfells between the carrying value of fixed assets ând their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. lmpåirment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Financ¡al Activities.

40



The Rosedale Hewens AcademY Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

I StatementofAccounting Polic¡es(continuedl

Liabilities
Liabil¡ties are recognised when there is an obligat¡on at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, ¡t is probable that a transfer of econom¡c benefit will be

required in the settiement, and the amount of the setilement can be estimated reliably. Liab¡l¡t¡es are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates ¡l

wili pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods and services it must provide.

Prov¡s¡ons
provisions can be recognìsed when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a resull of a past event which it ¡s probable will result in thê

transfer of econom¡c benefits and the obligation can be est¡mated reliabiy

provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle an obligat¡on. Where the effect of the t¡me value of money ¡s mater¡al, the prov¡s¡on

is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the last pre-tax d¡scount rate that reflects the r¡sks spec¡fic to the liability. The unwinding of the

discount is recognised wlthin interest payable and s¡milar charges.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operat¡ng leases are charged on a straight l¡ne basis over the lease term.

Stock
unsold uniforms and cater¡ng stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

At each reporling dale, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of the carry¡ng amount of stocks over ¡ts estimated sell¡ng price less costs to complete

anO sell is ìecog-nised as an impairment loss in profit or loss. Reversals of impairmenl losses are also recogn¡sed ¡n prof¡t or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eqùivalents include cash in hand, depos¡ts held at call with banks, other short-term liquid invesiments w¡th or¡ginal matur¡ties of three months or

less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdratts are shown with¡n borrowings in current liabilities.

The company has elected to apply the prov¡s¡ons of Section 1 1 'Bas¡c Financial lnstruments' and Section 12 'Other Financ¡al lnstruments lssues' of FRS 102 to all

of its f¡nancial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to the conlraclual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and ¡iabilit¡es are offset, with the net amounls presented in the financial statements, when there is a legally enforceable r¡ght to set off the

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets
Basic financial assets, which include trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are init¡ally measured at transaction price including transac't¡on

cosls and are subsequenfly carried at amortised cost usìng the effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transacl¡on, where the

iransaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of inlerest.

Other f¡nanc¡al assets
Other financial assets, including ¡nvestments in equ¡ty instruments wh¡ch are not subsidiaries, associetes or joint ventures, are inilially measured at fair value,

which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carr¡ed al fair value are recognised in prof¡t or loss, except that investments in equity

instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair values cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost less impairment.

Trade debtors, loans and other receivãbles that have f¡xed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as 'loans and

rece¡vables'. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cot us¡ng the effective interest method, less any impairment.

lnterest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognit¡on of interest would be ¡mmater¡al. The effective

interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating the interest income over the relevant per¡od. The effective

¡nterest rate is the rate that exacfly discoùnts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the debt instrument to the net carrying amount on in¡tial

recognition.
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The Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1 StâtementofAccount¡ngPolicies(continued)

lmpa¡rment of f¡nancial assets
Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit ând loss, are essessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting end date.

Financial assets ere impaired where there is objective evidence that, es a result of one or more events that occurred after the ¡nit¡al recognit¡on of the financial
asset, the est¡mated future cash flows have been affected. The impairment loss is recognised in prof¡t or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
Finencial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it trensfers the finencial asset and substanlially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to another entity.

Class¡f¡catíon of financial l¡abilities
Financial liabililies and equity instruments are classif¡ed according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic f¡nanciel liabilities
Basic f¡nancial liabilities, including trade and olher payâbles, bank loâns, ioans from feiiow group companies and preference shares that are classiÍied as debi, are
¡nitiâlly recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a f¡nancing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured et lhe present value of
the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest.

Debt instruments are subsequently carr¡ed at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade payables ere obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acqu¡red in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounls payable are
classified as current liabilit¡es if payment is due within one year or less. lf not, they are presented as non-current Iiabilities. Trade payables are recognised init¡ally
at transaction price and subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities
Derivatives, ¡ncluding interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, are not bas¡c financiâl inslruments. Der¡vatives are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a der¡valive contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivativeJ are recognised
¡n profit or loss in f¡nance costs or finance income as appropriate, unless they are included in e hedging arrangement.

Finencial liabilities and equ¡ty instruments are classified according to the substance of the contrac{ual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any
conlract that ev¡dences a residual interest in the assets of lhe company after deduct¡ng all of ils liabilities.

Derecognition of f¡nancial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the company's obligations are discharged, cancelled, or they expire.

Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 201 O and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable
company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital ga¡ns received w¡thin categories covered by perl I 1, chapter 3 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 ofthe Taxat¡on of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such ¡ncome or gains are appiied exclusiveiy to
charitable purposes.

Employee benefits
The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the per¡od in which lhe employee's services are received.

Termination benefits âre recognised immediately as an expense when the company ¡s demonslrably committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to
provide termination benef its.
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The Rosedale Hewens AcademY Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Pensions Benêf¡ts
Retirement benefits to employees of the acâdemy trust âre provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme

CLGPS). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TpS is an unfunded scheme and contrìbutions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pens¡ons over employees' working lives w¡th the academy trust ¡n

such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contr¡but¡ons are determined by the Government

Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated ¡n note 26, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is

insufficient information available to use def¡ned benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contr¡bution scheme for accounting purposes and the

contributions recognised in the period to wh¡ch they relate.

The LGpS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in separâte truslee administered funds. Pension scheme

assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit cred¡t method and discounted at a rate equ¡valent to

the current rate of return on a h¡gh quality corporate bond of equiva¡ent lerm and currency to the liabilities. The actuar¡al valual¡ons are obtained at least lr¡ennially

and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operat¡ng surplus are the currenl serv¡ce costs and the costs of scheme introductions,

benefit changes, setflements and curtailments. They are included as pârt of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also

recognised in the Statement of Financial Aclivit¡es and compr¡ses the ¡nterest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest ¡ncome on the scheme assets,

calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets al the beginning of the period by the rate used io discount the benefit obligations. The d¡fference

between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recogn¡sed immediately ìn other recogn¡sed gains and losses.

Fund Accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of

the trustees.

Restr¡cted fixed asset funds are resources wh¡ch are to be applied to spec¡fic capital purposes ¡mposed by funders where the asset acqu¡red or created is held for

a specifìc purpose.

Restricled general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restr¡ctions imposed by the funder/donor and ¡nclude grants from the Education and

Skills Fund¡ng Agency and London Borough of Hillingdon.

Cr¡tical account¡ng estimates and areas ofjudgment

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectâtions of future events lhat are

bel¡eved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical account¡ng esflmafes and assu mptions
The academy tru;t makes estimates and assumplions concerning the future. The resulting accounting eslimates and assumptions will, by defin¡tion, seldom equal

the related actual results. The est¡mates and assumptions lhat have a significant risk of caus¡ng a material adjustment to the carry¡ng amounts of asseis and

l¡abilities with¡n the next f¡nancial year are discussed below.

Local Government Pension Scheme
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme def¡ned benef¡t liability depends on a number of fâctors that are determined on an actuarial basis

using a var¡ety of assumptions. The assumpt¡ons used in determin¡ng the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these

assumpt¡ons, which are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which proiects results

from the latest full ac{uarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022has been used by the actuary in valuing the pens¡ons liability at 31 August 2024. Any

differences between the figures derived from the roll foMard approach and a full actuar¡al valuation would ¡mpact on the carrying amount of the pens¡on l¡ability.

The ultimale responsibility for sett¡ng the assumptions ¡s that of the academy trust, âs the employer, however each year the LGPS actuary proposes a standard set

of assumptions as part of the valuation exercise, using their expert opinion, and which comply with the accounting requ¡rements. The academy trust has, in

practice with most employers, adopted the recommended actuarial assumptions.
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2 Donations and capital grants

Cap¡tal Grants

2023124Total

2022123Total

3 Fundíng for the Academy Trusfs Educational Operations

DfE / ESFA revenue grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE/ESFA grants

UIFSM
Pupil Premium
Supplementary granl
Olhers

Other Government grants
Locel authority grants

Other income from the academy
trust's educational operat¡ons

4 Othêrtred¡ngactivities

Uniforms
Letting fees
Other income
Treining

2O22l23Tolal

Unrestricted
Funds
e000

Restr¡cted
General
Funds
€000

Restr¡cted
Fixed Asset

Funds
t000

Total
2024
c000

68 68

6E 68

205 205

Unrestrícted
Funds
[000

Restricted
Funds
cnnn

18,449

Total
2024
ßñîñ

Total
2023
€000

187
910

777

18,49

187
910
573
777

17,119

tÞt

859
702
412

20,896 20,896

1,227 1,227

19,253

851

1,227 1,227 851

J5 I 355331

33t --Eir --------w --------70¡5t

Unrestricted
Funds
c000

Restr¡cted
Funds
t000

Total
2024
€000

Total
2023
f000

81
IJ
45
12

87
I

47
9

81

t3
4õ
12

151 l5l 152
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5 lnvestment income

Short ierm deposits

6 Expend¡ture

Expenditure on raising funds:
AcademYs educational operat¡ons:

Direct costs
Allocated support costs

Net income / (expend¡ture) for the period includes:

Operating leases rentals
Depreciat¡on

Fees payable to auditor for:
Audit
Other services

lncluded w¡thin expendlture are the following lransact¡ons:

7 Char¡tableAct¡vit¡es

Direct costs - educational operat¡ons

Support costs - educat¡onal operations

Support costs - educational operations

Support staff cosls
Technology costs
Premise costs
LGPS pension non-cash movements

Olher support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

Unrestr¡cted
Funds
€000

132

Restr¡cted
Funds
€000

Total
2024
f,o00

Total
2023
Ê000

132 74

132 132 74

Non Pay Expenditure
Staff
Costs
€000

Premises
€000

Other
Ê000

Total
2024
€000

Total
2023
€000

14,952
3,041

2,481
2,405

ot

1,104
1,555

87

18,537

7,00r

64

17,275
6,671

17,993 4,886 2,746 25,625 ----@

2024
[000

2023
[000

26
2,481

26
6

2,4X0
35

22
7

Unrestricted
Funds
Ê000

Restricted
General
Funds
€000

16,056

7,001

-ñ¡;-

Restr¡cted
Fixed Asset

Funds
[000

2,481

Totâl
2024
Ê000

18,5t7

7,001

-----$r

Total
2024
f,o00

3,041
r33

2,405
(33)

1,421
34

Total
2023
f000

17,275

6,671

2,481 23,946

Educat¡onal
operations

[000

Total
2023
s000

3,041
133

2,405
(33)

1,421
34

2,694
151

2,410
102

1,278
Jþ

7,001 7,001 6,671
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8 Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the per¡od were:

Wages and salaries
Soc¡al security costs
Operating costs of defined benefit pension scheme
Apprent¡ceship leW

Supply staff costs

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the âcedèmy trust dur¡ng the period was as foiiows:

Teachers
Educational support
Administration and support
lvlanagement

c. H¡gher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludìng employer pension costs) exceeded 160,OO0 was:

Ê60,001 - t70,000
e70,001 - 880,000
€80,001 - Ê90,000
€100,001 - Ê1 10,000
Ê1 10,001 - Ê120,000
e120,001 - [130,000

2024
€000

2023
[000

12,108
1,168
2,129

4'l

10,61 I
1,048
1,870

31

15,46 13,560

2,547 2,922
17,993 16,482

2024 2023

295 279

2024 2023

No.No.

No.No.

'136

34
68
41

127
50
67
5'1

l8
5

1

;

13
11

2

2

No directors were remunerated during the year to 3l August 2024 and therefore no employer contr¡butions were made into the defined benef¡t scheme.

d. Key management personnel

The key menâgement personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management teem as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee
benefits (including employer pension contr¡butions) received by key management personnel for their services lo the academy tru slwas î.447,129 (2023:
1437,529).
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I Disclosure ofcentral services

The academy trust has prov¡ded the following central serv¡ces to its academies during the year:

human resources;
financial services;
legal services

These costs are allocated to schools on the basis of pupil numbers. During the year thls was as follows:

Rosedale College
Rosedale Primary
Hewens College
Parkside Stud¡o College
Brookside Pr¡mary School
Hewens Primary School
De Salis Stud¡o College

2024 2023

lO Related Party Transact¡ons - Trustees' Remuneration and Expenses

No trustees have been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the academy trust.

The number of directors to whom defined benefit pension contributions are accru¡ng under the Teacher's Pension Scheme is 0 (2023: 0)

During the year ended 31 August 2024, expenses totalling Enil (2023: Ênil) were re¡mbursed or paid directly to Trustees,

Other related party transact¡ons involving lhe irustees are set oul in nole 27.

11 Trustees and officers insurance

ln accordance w¡th normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect trustees and off¡cers from claims arising from negligent acts,

errors or omissions occurr¡ng whilst on academy business. The insurance prov¡des cover up to €2,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the per¡od ended 31

August 2024 is included in the total insurânce cost.

32.000/0

15.007o

17 .000/o

3.0070

13.00o/o

1 5.00%
5.00%

32.000/o

15.000/o

17.00o/o

3,000/o

13.00o/o

15-00%
5.00o/o
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12 Tang¡ble fixed assets

Cost
At I September 2023
Additions
Disposals

At 31 August 2024

Depreciation
At 1 September 2023
Charged in year
Disposals

At 31 August 2024

Net book values
At 31 August 2024

At 31 August 2023

l3 Financialinstruments

Carrying amount of financial assets
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

Carrying amount of f¡nancial liabilities
Measured at emorlised cost

14 Stock

Uniform

15 Debtors

VAT recoverable

Prepayments and accrued income

16 Creditors: Amounts fall¡ng due w¡thin one year

Trade creditors
Taxalion and social secur¡ty
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Deferred ¡ncome

Deferred lncome at 1 September 2023
Amounts released from previous years
Resources defered in the year
Deferred lncome at 31 August 2024

Freehold
Land and
Buildings

Leasehold
Land and
Bu¡ldings

Ê000

Furn¡ture and
Equ¡pment

e000

Motor
Vehicles

[000
Totâl
€000e000

73,781 13,872 7,449
- 320
- (135)

--,sr2 tsãf 87 --053U-

a7 25,48',1

2,481
(1 3s)

95,189
320

(r35)

73,781

16,871
1,476

2,868
278

5,655

(r 35)
727

18,347 3,'t46 6,247 87 27,827

55.434 10,726 1,387 67,547

56,910 11,004 ,t,794 69,708

2024
f000

2023
â000

156 158

347 553

2024
Ê000

2023
€000

128 141
,t28 141

2024
[000

2023
t000

77,1

515

309

405

366

J to

269
207
149

824

2024
e000

2023
€000

518

258
too

251
941 t,193

2024
e000

2023
€000

216
(216)

117

92
(e2)
2'16

117 216

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received in advance in respect of grants for universal infant free school meals relating to the year
ended 31 August 2025.
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17 Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other DfE grants

Other restr¡cted funds
Pension reserve

Restr¡cted f¡xed asset funds

DfE/ESFA capital grants

Transfer on convers¡on

Fixed assets purchased w¡th capital and other funding

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General unrestr¡cted funds
Designated funds
Total unrestr¡cted funds

Balance at
I September

2023

€000

872

(1,017')
(r45)

lncoming
Resoufces

€000

Resourcês
Expended

e000

Ga¡ns,
Losses and
Transfers

s000

356

Balance at
3l August

2024
Ê000

(628)
(628)

18,449
2,447
1,227

(19,416)
(2,447].

(1,227t

95

22,123 (23,0571 451

68 (68)

320
61,137

8,571

69,708

(1,se3)
(888)

(2,4811

59,544
8,003

67,54768 252

69,563 22,191 (25,538) 703 66.919

5,149

______-----:-
5,149 614 (87)

(1 ,347)
1,000
(347)

614 (87) 4,329
1,000
5.329

Total funds 74,712 22,805 (25,6251 356 ------J2248-

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant
This includes all monies rece¡ved from the ESFA to carry out the objectives of the academy trust. lt ¡ncludes the School Budget Share and education serv¡ces

grants.

Under the funding agreement the Secretary of State, the academy lrust was not subjecl to a lim¡t on the amount of GAG that ¡t could carry foMard at 31 August

2024.

Other DfE/ESFA grants
This represents revenue grants received from the ESFA for specìfic purposes, ¡nclud¡ng funds provided to support individual pupils with a SEN statement and

development grants received by the academy trust

Other restr¡cted funds
This represents revenue grants received from the Local Education Authorit¡es for specific purposes.

Pension reserve
This represents the negative reserve in respect of the liability on the LGPS defined benefit pens¡on scheme which was transferred to the academy on convers¡on.

F¡xed asset fund
The fund includes the value of the tangible fixed assets of the academy on conversion, and monies transferred from the GAG or other restricted funds specifically

for expenditure on tangible fixed assets, and the annual charges for deprec¡at¡on of these assets.

Transfers between funds
Transfers from the Unrestricled Fund to the fixed asset fund of e252k relate to fixed assets purchased from unrestricted funds. Transfers from the unrestricted iund

of g95k is to be used against the deficit on the General Annual Grant Fund.

Des¡gnated fund
The designated fund represents ringfenced requ¡red funds for the Trust's contnbution towards the Schools Rebuilding Project by the DfE, which will be required to

f¡t out the new buildings with fixed furniture and equipment on completion of the project by the DfE.

Unrestr¡cted fund
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of

the trustees.
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17 Funds (cont¡nuedl

Comparative information in respect of the preceding per¡od is as follows:

Restr¡cted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE grants
Other restr¡cted funds
Pension rêsêrue

Rêst.icted f¡xed asset funds

DfE/ESFA capital gi'ants

ïrânsfer on conversion
Fixed assets purchased w¡lh capital and other funding

2,746 17 ,119
2,133

851
(1,68s)
1,061 20,103 (21,516)

62,730 (1,5e3)
(837)8,640

71,370 205 (2,4301

72,431

Restâted

Balance at
1 September

2022
€000

lncom¡ng
Resources

€000

Resources
Expended

f000

Gains,
Losses and
Transfe¡s

€000

(s63)

770

Balance at
3l August

2023
â000

872

(1,017)
(r451

61,137
8,571

69,708

(18,430)
(2,1 33)

(851)

207

76;
563

Total restricted funds

Total unrestr¡cted funds

Total funds

20,308 (23,9461 770 69,563

4,632 581 {64t 5,149

77,06t 20,889 (24.010t 770 74,712
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17 Funds (continued)

Total funds analys¡s by academy

Rosedale Co¡lege
Rosedale Primary
Hewens College
Parks¡de Studio College
Brookside Primary School
Hewens Primary School
De Salis Studio College
Central services
Academy Trust

Total
2024
€000

Totâl
2023
[000

Rosedale College
Rosedale Primary
Hewens College
Parkside Studio College
Brookside Primary School

Hewens Primary School

De Salis Studio College
Central serv¡ces

Total before f¡xed assets and pension reserve

Restr¡cted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve
Total

Total cost analys¡s by academy
Expend¡ture incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and

Educat¡onal Other
Support SuPPort

StaffCosts Staffcosts
Ê000 €000

4,569
6,047

(r,804)
(1,33e)

14
(354)

(2,1e4)
390

4,309
5,967

(1,4s31

(r,0e7)
390

(337)

12,0251
267

5,329

67,547
(628)

6,021

69,708
(1,017)-----@72,248

While fund balances carried forward have been separately disclosed for each academy, the academy trust manages its surplus funds on a central basis. Making

these central funds available for spending Õn special and long-term cap¡tal projects.

Educational
Supplies

€000

Other Costs
(excluding

deprecietion)
e000

2024
Total
€000

2023
Total
r000

5,269
1,884
2,637

497
1,879
'l,715
1,072

7,559
3,212
4,631

73'l
2,772
2,746
1,514

12

1,047

415
571

56
344
444
164

147

150
95

156
IJÞ

1,096

764
1,329

175
393
451

254
12

6,985
2,688
3,926

801
2,622
3,145
1,308

3

14,952 3,041 711 4,474 23,177 21,478
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18 Analys¡s of net assets between Funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are represented by:

Tangible fixed essets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability
Total net assets (restated)

Unrestrícted
Funds
s000

Restr¡cted
General
Funds
Ê000

(628)
(6281

Restr¡cted
Fixed
Asset
Funds
€,000

67,547

Total
Funds
€000

Tangible fixed assets
Currenl âssels
Current liabilities

6,270
(e41)

Pension scheme liability
Total net âssets 5,329

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by:

Unrestricted
Funds
€000

Restricted
General
Funds
€000

872

( 1,017)
5,149 (l¿15)

19 F¡nancielCommitments

Operating Leases

At 31 August 2024 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases was:

H¡re of plant and machinery

Amounts due w¡thin one yeâr

Amounts due between two and five years

67,547
6,270
(941)
(6281

67,547 72,24

6,342
(1,193)

Rêstricted
Fixed
Asset
Funds
Ê000

69,708

Total
Funds
t000

69,708
7,214

(1,193)
(r,017)
74,71269,708

2024
Ê000

2023
€000

43

86

17

129 17
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20 Reconciliation of Net lncome/(expenditufe) to Net Cash lnflow from operat¡ng Activities

Net expenditure
Adjusted for:
Depreciation
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capital income

lnterest receivable
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost

lncrease/(decrease) ¡n stocks
(lncrease)/decrease in debtors
lncrease/(decrease) in cred¡tors

Net Cash provided by / (used in) Operating Act¡v¡ties

21 Cash frows from financing activities

lnterest received

Net cash provided by / (used ¡n) financing act¡vit¡es

22 Cash flowsfrom investing act¡v¡ties

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group

Net Cash provided by / (used ¡n) ¡nvest¡ng Act¡vitíes

23 Analysis ofcash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equ¡valents

24 Analys¡s ofchanges ¡n netdebt

Cash

Total

2024 2023

(2,820) (3,121)

2,481
(68)

(132\
(84)

51

IJ
CJ

(252)

(758) (4931

2024 2023
Êt

't32 74

132 74

2024 2023

(768)

(2521 (563)

€€

2,430
(205)
(74\

29
73

(16)
(23)
414

âe

205
(320)

68

2024

s000

2023

€000

5,371 6,249

5.371 6,249

Balance at
1 September

2023
s000

6,249

Cash flows
f,o00

(878)

Bâlancè et
3l August

2024
s000

5,371

6,249 (878) 5,371
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25 Members'Liabil¡ty

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contr¡bute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up wh¡le they are a member, or
within one year after they cease to be â member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding Êl 0 for the debts ánd liabilities contracted before they cease to
be a member.

26 Pension and Similar Obligations

The academy trust's employees belong 10 two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension scheme England and wales (Tps) for academic and related
staff: and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by The London Borough of Hillingdon. Both are multi-employer
defined-benefit schemes.

The latest actuar¡al valualion of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2O2o and of the LGPS 31 March 2022.

Contribul¡ons amount¡ng to 8207,368 (2024: î.152,741) were payable to the schemes at 3'l August 2024 and are included with¡n creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contr¡butory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' pensions Regulations 2014. Membership ls
automatic for full-time teachers ¡n academies, All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TpS following enrolment.

The TPS ¡s an unfunded scheme lo which both the member and employer mekes contribut¡ons, as a percentâge of salary - these contribul¡ons are credited to the
Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by parliament.

Valuat¡on of the Teachers' Pens¡on Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial pr¡nciples, conducts a formal actuar¡al rev¡ew of the TPs in accordance with the public serv¡ce pens¡ons
(Valuations and Employer Cost cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs ere recognised
and managed appropriately and the rev¡ew spec¡fies the level of future contr¡butions.

Actuar¡al scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other fâc{ors. The latest acluarial
valuation of the TPS was carried out as al 31 March 2020' The valuation report was publ¡shed by the Department for Education on 27 October 2028, w¡th the
SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investmenl return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPl. The key elements of the valuâtion are:

' employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pây (¡ncluding a o.o8% employer administrat¡on levy). This is an increase of 570 in employer
contributions and the cost control result is such that no change in member benefits is needed.

' tolal scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of Î262,000 million, and
notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the nolional ¡nvestments held at the valuâtion date) ol î222,200 million giving a notional past
serv¡ce deficit of Ê39,800 million.

The result of th¡s vâlualion has been implemented from 1 Apr¡l 2024. The nexl valuation result is due to be implemented from ,l April 2028. A copy of the valuation
report and supporting documentation is available on the Teachers, pensions website.

The School participates in the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("the TPS") for its teaching staff. The pension charge for the year includes contr¡butions payable to the
TPS of Ê1,665,723 (2023: 81,458,186).

Under the defin¡tions set out in FRSI 02, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contr¡butions to the scheme
as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust hes set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Gove¡nment Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contribution made for the year
ended 31 August 2024 was f471,000 (2023: t519,000), of which employefs contr¡butions totalled Ê381,000 (2023: e4O9,OOO) and employees' contr¡but¡ons
totalled e90,000 (2023: e1 1 0,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years is 21 .80/o for employers, with employee rates banded according to salary.

Parliement has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee thât, in the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government
PensionSchemeliabilit¡eswouldbemetbytheDepartmentforEducation.TheguaranteecameintoforceonlSJuly2O,l3andon2l July2}2i,theDepartment
for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.
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26 Pension and S¡milar Obligat¡ons (cont¡nued)

Pr¡nc¡pal Actuarial Assumpt¡ons

Râte of increase ¡n salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation

Discount rate for scheme liabilities

Ret¡ríng today
Males
Females

Ret¡ñng ¡n 20 years

The current mortal¡ty assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectat¡ons on retirement age 65 are:

3.2%
2.7o/o

5.0o/o

4
262
151
152

At 3t
August

2024

1 9.3 years
23.8 years

21.5 years
25.4 years

At 31

August
2024
Ê000

At 31

August
2024

At 3l
August

2023

3.5o/o

3.0o/o

5.2Vo

At 31

August
2023

19.4 years

23.8 years

21.6 years
25.4 years

At 3t
August

2023
Ê000

Fair vâlue
at 31 August

2023
e000

Males
Females

Sens¡tiv¡ty analys¡s

Approximate monetary increase to the obligation as a result of the following changes in

assumpt¡ons at 31 August 2024

0.1% ¡ncrease ¡n the salary increase rale

1 year increase ¡n member life expectancy
0.1% increase in the pens¡on increase rate
0.1% decrease in real discount rate

The academys share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equity instruments
Other bonds
Property
Cash and other liquid assets
Total market value of assets

Present value of scheme liabil¡ties

Def¡c¡t in the scheme

The actual return on scheme assets was e972,000 (2023: Ê373,000)

7
238
142
145

Fair value
at 31 August

2024
t000

3,191
1,596

827
296

2,469
1,432

790
247

5,910 4,938

(6,538) (5,e5sl

þ?q (1,017)
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26 Pension and Similar Obligations (cont¡nued)

Local Government Pension Scheme (continued)

Amounts recognísed in the stâtement of fìnancial activit¡es

Current serv¡ce cost
Net interest cosl
Total operat¡ng charge

Chânges ¡n the fâir value of def¡ned benef¡t obligations were as follows:

At t September 2023
Current service cost

lnterest cost
Employee contr¡butions

B6nef¡ts paid

Actuarial loss

At 31 August 2024

Changes in the fair value of Academy's share of scheme assets:

At 1 September 2023

Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net def¡ned pension liability)
Employee contributions
Employer contr¡butions

Benefits paid

Actuar¡al gâin/(¡oss)

At 31 August 2024

27 Related Party Trânsactions

2024
€000

2023
€000

297

51

438
IJ

348 511

2024

€000
2023
c000

5,955

297

316

90
(158)

JÕ

6,250

438

275

110
(110)

(1,008)

6,538 5,955

2024

[000

2023

e000

4,938

¿oc

90

381

(r58)
394

4,565

202
't't0
409
(110)

(238)

--------Ee-io 4,938

Ow¡ng to the nalure of the acâdemy trust ând the composition of the board of trustees being drâwn from local public and pr¡vate sector organisations, transact¡ons
may take place with organisalions in which the trust has an interest. All transactions involv¡ng such organisat¡ons âre conducted at arm's length and in accordance
w¡th the trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

The academy trusl has known related parties as described on page 7.

The following related party transactions took place in the period of account:

Rosedale College Commun¡ty Enterprise Limited is a company incorporated in England and Wales. The company is not d¡reclly owned by the Trust but Clive
Neathey (member), also acls as (non-salaried) director of the trading company. The company operates as a number of the Trust's facilities for the benefit of pup¡ls
and lhe local commun¡ty. lt is administered by the Trust's staff and management. The Trust includes Rosedale College Community Enterprise Limited under its
insurance policies.

A Member of lhe Trust is a registered non-salaried Director of Little Marvels Nursery Services Limiled. The Trust includes Little Marvels Nursery Services Limited
under its insurance policies.

A Member of the Trust is a registered non-salaried Director of Rowensbrook Training and Development Limiled. The Trust includes Rowensbrook Training and
Development L¡mited under its insurance policies.

During the year, the academy trust incurred fees totalling €9,240 (2023: e9,6OO) in respect of catering consultancy services carried out by Norman Deas
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28 Comparative Statement of Financial Activ¡ties

lncome and endowments from
Donat¡ons and capital grants

Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations

Other trading activities
lnvestments

Totâl

Expend¡ture on:
Rais¡ng funds
Charitable activ¡lies:

Academy lrust educational operations

Total

Net ¡ncome / (expend¡ture)

Transfers between funds

Other recognised ga¡ns/(losses):
Acluarial (losses) / ga¡ns on def¡ned

benef¡t pension schemes

Net movement ¡n funds

Total funds brought foMard at 1 September 2022

Total funds car¡ed forward at 31 August 2023

Unrestr¡cted
Funds
e000

Restricted
General
Funds
f000

20,103

Restricted
F¡xed Asset

Funds
t000

Total
2021
e000

205

2,430

205

20,103

64

23,946

507
74

507
74

581 20,103 205 20,889

64

64

21,516

21,516 2,430 24,010

517 (1,413)

(563)

(2,225) (3,'t211

770 770

517 (1,206) (1,662) (2,35r )

4,632 1,061 71,370 77,063

5.149 fl45) 69,708 74,712

563




